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Five-Year Financial Summary

TEHBEBRE

For the year ended 31 December

HE+T-_A=T—HILLFE
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Bt T CZT-RF —T-NF ZT-=F
Profitability data BRELYE
(RMB million) (AR¥EBER)
Revenue Yezs 125.5 215.8 171.7 196.8 624.1
Gross profit 5 28.5 75.3 42.9 19.1 186.9
(Loss)/profit for the year ENER)/mF (435.4) (317.6) (25.7) (31.2) 67.9
Profitability ratios (%) BRI E(%)
Gross profit margin EF= 22.7% 34.9% 25.0% 9.7% 30.0%
Net (loss)/profit margin F(BR)/aflx (346.9)%  (147.2)% (15.0)% (15.8)% 10.9%
Assets and liabilities data EEREERE
(RMB million) (AR®EETR)
Non-current assets FRBEE 705.3 1,417.0 1,597.4 129.5 138.2
Current assets MENEE 110.4 1176 870.4 1,243.3 1,313.5
Current liabilities neaE 294.1 224.8 821.7 2785 326.2
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 108.2 466.5 517.1 3.1 3.1
Shareholders’ equity RR R 413.4 843.4 1,129.0 1,091.2 1,122.4
Asset and working EEREEES
capital data g
Current asset ratios (%) MBS L E (%) 13.5% 7.7% 35.3% 90.6% 90.5%
Current ratios (time) MENLE(fF) 0.4x 0.5x 1.1x 4.5x 4.0x
Gearing ratios (%) BELE%) 49.0% 44.6% 54.2% 20.3% 22.5%
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
"Directors”) of Baofeng Modern International Holdings
Company Limited (“Baofeng Modern” or the “Company”), |
am pleased to present the financial report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2017.

During 2017, as the slippers retail industry experienced stiff
competition from online retailers, some overseas customers
tried to scale back their shops and controlled the stock level,
resulting in a decrease in quantity ordered, delay of placing
orders and a decrease of the revenue of Original Equipment
Manufacturer (“OEM") business of approximately RMB50.1
million for 2017. Besides, as the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") government started to strengthen the environmental
protection and control on the highly polluting industries
in 2016, the prices of chemical raw materials increased
significantly in 2017 which caused the cost of graphene-
based ethylene-vinyl acetate (“EVA") foam material to increase
substantially. Moreover, the Environmental Protection Bureau
imposed a limit on the production scale of foam material
of our existing production site. As the annual production
volume of foam material was restricted and the costs of
various chemical raw materials kept increasing, the Group
focused on producing own branded automated customized
graphene-based slippers (“Graphene-based Slippers”) with
higher gross profit margin instead of graphene-based EVA
foam material in 2017. As such, the Group repositioned the
graphene-based products and mainly use graphene-based
EVA foam material to produce Graphene-based Slippers and
developed the Online-to-Offline (“020") business model for
the sales and distribution of Graphene-based Slippers during
the year. As the time used to improve and upgrade the do-it-
yourself ("DIY") automated vending system, the key machine
for the 020 business model, was longer than expected, the
revenue of graphene-based EVA foam material and slippers
with sterilizing, good elasticity and tear resistant functions
("Graphene-based Products”) only amounted to approximately
RMB2.1 million for 2017. Due to the decrease in the revenue
of OEM business and the unexpected low contribution from
Graphene-based Products, the revenue of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB125.5 million in 2017 representing a
decrease of 41.9% in comparison to approximately RMB215.8
million in last year. During the year, the gross profit margin
of the Group decreased to 22.7% (2016: 34.9%) which
was mainly attributable to the significant increase in cost of
chemical raw materials.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Though the revenue of Graphene-based Products was lower
than expected in 2017, the feedback from customers and
the market was positive. This positive feedback enhanced the
confidence of the Group on the 020 business model. In the
coming year, the Group will develop and launch Graphene-
based Slippers and graphene-based shoes with different styles
and functions and the Group targets to develop a new retail
model for selling these products.

Moreover, the Group would continue to develop and launch
different types of graphene application products. The
sterilizing chips for air purifiers and air conditioners already
completed the development stage and proved to be highly
effective on reducing formaldehyde, toluene, xylene and
volatile organic compounds and will be launched in the
first half of 2018. As the PRC government tightened the
environmental protection and control and the public pays
more attention to the environmental protection, the Directors
believed that there would be a great market demand. In the
coming years, the Group would continue deploying more
resources on the research and development of graphene
application products and would focus on promoting the
graphene technology and the development of graphene
application products in different fields in order to develop new
markets and new business. The Company strives to become
a material science technology application company and the
Board is of the view that this transformation would enhance
the competitiveness and long-term development of the Group
and help the Group to generate more revenue and profit in the
future.

Last but not the least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank our management and all staff for their dedication and
contribution to the development of the Group. | would also
like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to
our customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders
for their continuous commitment and support.

Zheng Jingdong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Due to the decrease in the revenue of OEM business
and the unexpected low contribution from Graphene-
based Products, the revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB125.5 million in 2017 representing a
decrease of 41.9% in comparison to approximately RMB215.8
million in last year. As the slippers retail industry experiences
stiff competition from online retailers, revenue of OEM
business was seriously affected, resulting in a decrease of
the revenue of approximately RMB50.1 million or 29.5% to
approximately RMB119.9 million for the year. Besides, as the
PRC government started to strengthen the environmental
protection and control on the highly polluting industries in
2016, many chemical raw materials suppliers closed down.
The prices of chemical raw materials and the cost of consigned
processing by sub-contractors increased significantly in
2017 which caused the cost of graphene-based EVA foam
material to increase substantially. Besides, due to tightening
environmental protection and control by the PRC government,
the Environmental Protection Bureau imposed a limit on the
production scale of foam material of our existing production
site. As the annual production volume of foam material was
restricted and the costs of various chemical raw materials kept
increasing, the Directors considered that the Group should
focus on the direction of producing Graphene-based Slippers
with higher gross profit margin instead of graphene-based
EVA foam material in 2017. As such, the Group repositioned
the graphene-based products and mainly use graphene-
based EVA foam material to produce Graphene-based Slippers
and developed the 020 business model for the sales and
distribution of Graphene-based Slippers during the year. As
the time used to improve and upgrade the DIY automated
vending system, the key machine for the 020 business model,
was longer than expected, the revenue of Graphene-based
Products only amounted to approximately RMB2.1 million for
the year (2016: RMB43.2 million).

During the year, the gross profit margin of the Group
decreased to 22.7% (2016: 34.9%) which was mainly
attributable to the significant increase in cost of chemical raw
materials.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

During the year, the Group recorded a net loss of
approximately RMB435.4 million (2016: RMB317.6 million),
which is mainly attributable to (i) amortisation of intangible
assets of approximately RMB128.3 million (2016: RMB105.4
million) and impairment loss on intangible assets of
approximately RMB537.3 million (2016: RMB325.6 million);
and offset by (ii) the fair value gain on convertible notes
and warrants at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
of approximately RMB55.1 million (2016: fair value loss of
RMB31.2 million) and (iii) the fair value gain on provision for
contingent consideration at FVTPL of approximately RMB219.9
million (2016: RMB141.9 million).

The amount of impairment loss of approximately RMB477.8
million in relation to the acquisition of certain technological
know-how in respect of the application of graphene and
includes one patent in the United States of America (“US"),
four invention patent applications, three utility model patent
applications and two utility model patents in the PRC, relating
to the manufacturing of graphene-based EVA foam material,
graphene deodorizing and sterilizing chips and graphene-
based pressure-sensitive sensors and the exclusive formula
(collective as the “Technology Know-how") from Bluestone
Technologies (Cayman) Limited (“Bluestone”) in 2015, was
made with reference to a valuation report conducted by an
independent professional valuer based on various information
provided by the management including but not limited to
detailed business plan, financial model and actual sales track
records. The Board has reviewed the available information and
supporting documents and agreed with the position of the
management of the Company that the amount of impairment
was adequate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During last year, the Group engaged several independent third
parties in the research and development of manufacturing
and application technology of graphene material on sterilizing
chips for air purifiers and air conditioners, energy storage
materials for batteries and pressure-sensitive lighting devices
for shoes and recognised the related deferred development
costs as intangible assets. Several invention and utility model
patents arising from the deferred development costs were
either obtained or under application in the PRC and the
sterilizing chips for air purifiers and air conditioners would be
launched in the first half of 2018, as a result, the Directors are
of the view that future economic benefits will be generated
from such development costs. For the energy storage
materials for batteries and pressure-sensitive lighting devices
for shoes, the Group is currently conducting various tests on
these projects and would continue improve and develop the
technology in the coming year. As the Directors considered
that they will not generate economic benefits for the Group
in short term, the total related deferred development costs of
RMB59.5 million was fully impaired during the year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

BEEENWR DM
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Revenue by Product Category REREN BN KRR
Increase/
2017 2016  (decrease)
RMB’000 RMB'000 % change
g,
—E—t&E Z—T—RF ORL)
AREBTRT ARETRT % & &)
Revenue (Boree Products) W (BEAMER) 3,517 2,698 30.4%
Revenue (Graphene-based Products) W (AR2EER) 2,130 43,171 (95.1%)
Revenue (OEM Business) %5 (OEMZEET) 119,854 169,962 (29.5%)
Revenue (Total) sk (#4%8) 125,501 215,831 (41.9%)

Boree Products BEABER

Revenue from Boree Products increased by 30.4% to
approximately RMB3.5 million during the year (2016: RMB2.7
million) was due to the increase of online sales.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Graphene-based Products

Due to the unexpected increase in price of chemical raw
materials and the restriction on annual production volume
of foam material, the Group reconsidered the positioning
of graphene application products. Due to the absence of
comparable products in the existing footwear and slippers
market, the launch of Graphene-based Slippers can distinguish
our slippers from normal slippers and repositioned our own
branded slippers as slippers with distinctive functions like
sterilizing, good elasticity and tear resistant. Besides, as the
gross profit margin of Graphene-based Slippers is much higher
than the graphene-based EVA foam material, the Group
considered that by using graphene-based EVA foam material
for the production of Graphene-based Slippers instead of
direct sales to customers can generate higher profit for the
Group. As a result, the Group focused on the development of
DIY automated vending system for the sales and distribution
of Graphene-based Slippers during the year and the trial run
of the first generation of the DIY automated vending system
was completed in the first half of 2017. Based on the trial run
data and feedback from customers, improvement and upgrade
on the automated vending system hardware and software
was made and the second generation of the DIY automated
vending system was launched in July 2017. In response to
customers’ needs, the design of the third generation of the
DIY automated vending system was improved to be compatible
with both summer and winter Graphene-based Slippers and
was launched and started trial run in December 2017. As the
time used to improve and upgrade the DIY automated vending
system was longer than expected, the revenue of Graphene-
based Products only amounted to approximately RMB2.1
million for the year (2016: RMB43.2 million).

OEM Business

As the slippers retail industry experiences stiff competition
from online retailers, some overseas customers try to scale
back their shops and control the stock level, resulting in a
decrease in quantity ordered and delay of placing orders, and
so the sales of OEM business decreased by RMB50.1 million or
29.5% to approximately RMB119.9 million as compared with
last year (2016: RMB170.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Selling and Distribution Expenses

During the year, selling and distribution expenses slightly
increased by 4.2% to approximately RMB8.9 million as
compared with that of last year (2016: RMB8.6 million), which
accounted for 7.1% (2016: 4.0%) of the Group’s revenue. The
increase was mainly attributable to more marketing activities
held for the promotion of Graphene-based Slippers.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses recorded a decrease of
approximately RMB12.1 million or 23.3% during the year as
compared with that of last year, which was mainly attributable
to the decrease in share-based payment expenses of
approximately RMB15.3 million in relation to the share options
granted by the Company on 10 December 2015, 24 June 2016
and 16 December 2016.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year, net cash inflow from operating activities of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB28.3 million (2016:
RMB33.2 million). As at 31 December 2017, cash and bank
balances were approximately RMB5.9 million, representing
an increase of 22.9% as compared with the cash and bank
balances as at the end of last year (2016: RMB4.8 million).
As at 31 December 2017, around 34.5% and 60.4% of the
Group’s cash and bank balances were denominated in US
dollars and Renminbi respectively. As at 31 December 2017,
the interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group were
approximately RMB117.0 million (2016: RMB124.0 million). All
bank loans were denominated in Renminbi, with fixed interest
rates and repayable within one year.

Capital Structure

As at 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017, the Company
had 1,084,059,608 shares in issue and a paid-up capital of
approximately RMB71,629,000.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals

During the year, the Group did not have any significant
investments, material acquisitions and disposals.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the bills payables were secured
by a pledge of the Group’s time deposits amounting to
approximately RMB2.1 million (2016: RMB4.3 million). The
bank borrowings of the Group were also secured by a pledge
of the Group’s certain buildings and land use rights with
carrying amounts of approximately RMB12.4 million (2016:
RMB15.7 million) and approximately RMB32.6 million (2016:
RMB33.5 million) respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, there were no material
contingent liabilities.

Foreign Exchange Risk

During the year, the sales of the Group were mainly
denominated in US dollars and Renminbi. The cost of sales and
operating expenses were mainly denominated in Renminbi.
Management of the Group monitors the foreign exchange
risk and will consider hedging significant foreign currency risk
exposure if necessary.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio of the Group
was 49.0% (2016: 44.6%). Gearing ratio was calculated as
total debt divided by the total equity plus total debt. Total
debt refers to the total liability minus the sum of tax payable,
dividend payable and deferred tax liability.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of
approximately 730 employees (2016: 840 employees), with
total staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2017,
including directors’ remuneration, amounted to approximately
RMB52,049,000 (2016: RMB70,309,000). The Group's
emolument policies are based on the merit, qualifications and
competence of individual employee and are reviewed by the
remuneration committee periodically. The emoluments of the
Directors are recommended by the remuneration committee
and are decided by the Board, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. The Company also adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 8 January 2011 to
motivate and reward its Directors and eligible employees.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Use of Net Proceeds from the Share Offering

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had unutilised net
proceeds from the Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) in the amount
of approximately RMB2.9 million, representing approximately
0.8% of the total net proceeds from the IPO (the “Unutilised
Net Proceeds”). Approximately RMB73.4 million of the
Unutilised Net Proceeds were originally intended to be used to
acquire other branded product business and establish flagship
shops and showrooms. As the Company believed that such
intended use no longer met the Group's imminent business
development needs, the Board had resolved to change the
proposed use of such RMB73,443,000 and apply them for the
partial settlement of the third instalment of the consideration
for the acquisition of the Technology Know-how in 2016.
Besides, in order to develop and strengthen the selling and
distribution system, the proposed use of approximately
RMB45,026,000 and RMB14,974,000 was changed from
increasing production capacity and strengthening the
distribution resource planning system respectively to settle
the payment for the design and development of the 020
distribution vending system in 2016. In light of current
market conditions of footwear industry in the PRC and the
development of the Group, the Company believes that the
use of the Unutilised Net Proceeds under the original intended
purpose may no longer meet the Group’s imminent business
development needs. In order to maximise the benefits of the
Company and its shareholders, the Company may change
the usage of the Unutilised Net Proceeds from the original
intended purposes to working capital and other general
corporate purposes of the Group. If this happens, further
announcements will be made by the Company as and when
appropriate in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the "Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "“Stock Exchange”).

The ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange on 28 January 2011
with net proceeds received by the Company from the share
offering of HK$453,570,000 (approximately RMB387,666,000)
(after deducting underwriting commission and related
expenses).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

The utilisation of the net proceeds as at 31 December 2017 is

set out as follows:

BB R ()

RIE—+tF+A=+—H FBHRA
FENBRBEREINNT

Nature Amount raised Amount utilised
=1 e BASEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARMTFIT
To increase production capacity EmEsk (HARK
(approximately RMB45,026,000 was 45,026,0007T 2 &
changed to “To settle the payment for BAE#£E AR
the design and development of the M 0200 HE
020 distribution vending system”) EERXGHMN]) 135,683 135,683
Marketing and advertising expenses HENTEBEX 96,917 96,917
To acquire other branded product Lt 8 Lt m b EE
business (approximately XK (HWARE
RMB58,150,000 was changed to “To 58,150,0007T & %
settle the payment of the acquisition of & /& [# & U BE R
the Technology Know-how") T En e~ 71 ) 58,150 58,150
To strengthen design capability e e a1 19,383 16,437
To establish flagship shops and 9 A% PE A K PR
showrooms (approximately TE(HARE
RMB15,293,000 was changed to “To 15,293,000 T & &
settle the payment of the acquisition of & /& [# & U BER
the Technology Know-how") (PIE 0k E- D) 19,383 19,383
To strengthen the distribution resource gD HE R E
planning system (approximately G (AR
RMB 14,974,000 was changed to “To 14,974,0007T B &
settle the payment for the design and ERI&EERRS
development of the 020 distribution MFE0200HE
vending system”) EERXGHMNE]) 19,383 19,383
General working capital —REEE® 38,767 38,767
Total: et 387,666 384,720
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Use of Net Proceeds from the Issue of a Total of
88,000,000 Warrants on 21 April 2015 (the “2015
Warrants”)

The net proceeds from the issue of 2015 Warrants of
approximately HK$6,000,000 was intended to be retained in
Hong Kong as general working capital of the Company and its
offshore subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and overseas
(the "Offshore Group Members”) to settle the expenses such
as administrative expenses, the professional fees and the salary
expenses incurred by the Offshore Group Members. The net
proceeds of approximately HK$6,000,000 from the issue of
2015 Warrants had been fully utilised for general working
capital of the Offshore Group Members to settle the expenses
such as administrative expenses, the professional fees and
the salary expenses incurred by the Offshore Group Members
during the year ended 31 December 2015. All warrants from
the issue of 2015 Warrants have been expired in 2016. No
2015 Warrants have been exercised since the issue date of
2015 Warrants.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group focused on the development of 020 business
model for the sales and distribution of Graphene-based
Slippers with distinctive functions and a higher gross profit
margin and design and development of different styles of
Graphene-based Slippers according to customers’ preferences
in 2017. Though the time used to improve and upgrade the
DIY automated vending system was longer than expected, the
feedback from customers and the market was positive. This
positive feedback enhanced the confidence of the Group on
the 020 business model. In view of the distinctive functions
of the Graphene-based Slippers and low operating cost of the
DIY automated vending system and the instant cash flow from
customers by online payment, the Directors are of the view
that the DIY automated vending system is an effective and
efficient way of selling the Graphene-based Slippers and can
maximise the profit of the Group.

In the coming year, the Group targets to greatly increase the
number of DIY automated vending system and will launch
marketing campaigns with more resources on the Graphene-
based Slippers under the 020 business model. Besides, the
Group will develop and launch Graphene-based Slippers and
graphene-based shoes with different styles and functions and
the Group targets to develop a new retail model for selling
these products.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

Moreover, the Group would continue to develop and launch
different types of graphene application products. The
sterilizing chips for air purifiers and air conditioners already
completed the development stage and proved to be highly
effective on reducing formaldehyde, toluene, xylene and
volatile organic compounds and will be launched in the
first half of 2018. As the PRC government tightened the
environmental protection and control and the public pays
more attention to the environmental protection, the Directors
believed that there would be a great market demand for
environmental protection products like air purifiers. Besides,
in the coming year, the Group would continue improve and
develop graphene-based energy storage cathode materials for
batteries. As the performance of our graphene-based energy
storage cathode materials for batteries is superior than the
existing graphite based cathode material for batteries, the
Directors believed that there would be a big demand for this
product by lithium battery manufacturers in the PRC.

After paying continuous effort and capital investment in
the past three years, the Group gradually transformed from
a traditional manufacturing company to a high technology
company and started to diversify our business to environmental
protection and energy related field. In the coming vyears,
the Group would continue deploying more resources on the
research and development of graphene application products
and would focus on promoting the graphene technology and
the development of graphene application products in different
fields in order to develop new markets and new business. The
Company strives to become a material science technology
application company and the Board is of the view that this
transformation would enhance the competitiveness and
long-term development of the Group and help the Group to
generate more revenue and profit in the future.
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The Board and the management of the Company are
committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Company believes that good
corporate governance provides a framework that is essential
for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,
successful business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

The Company has complied with the code provision (the
“Code Provision”) as set out in the CG Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2017, save for the deviations
as discussed below. The Company periodically reviews its
corporate governance practices to ensure its continuous
compliance.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the required
standard for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors
and each of them confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code during the
financial year ended 31 December 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board members are:

° Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (Vice-chairman)

TEERERE

ARREZGNERBRINERRIFZ
CEERAFRIERF ARAMEE REFZ
CEEARREBRANER BERED
XX RN ESEBEEIREARRE
B ST Al Sk 2 248

ARBBREAERERE XA MR A
ek - ¥ B AT Al ([REERT
A1) 35 R B K 57 AT -

B NPT i R BESN AR RIRNELE =
E—tHF+-_A=t—HLFEE2F—H
Ep B A ST AT EL ST AESC (157 B
X)) o ARBEMBHERERER M
HRFESR -

EEETESREZNEESTA

AR BB BR AN T AR RIBH 8% 1 A E b E
TAEFETESFRSNEESTR (1R
BTN EREFETESR D ZREE
Q- XAABEREBERFLEMEHR 2
REEOBARSFRNEBEE_T—LF1+=
A=t+—BLEFBRFEAD ETHEETE
Pk 2 #2572

EEg
EEGREMT :
. HTESE:
SR S
(ERFITHRABE)

REmELE(BIER)

HERY —T-tFFH

17




A

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
° Non-Executive Directors:
Ms. LIN Weihuan

o Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. AN Na
Professor ZHAO Jinbao
Mr. CHEN Shaohua

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the
section headed "“Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
47 to 49 of this annual report. The composition of the Board is
well balanced. Each of the Directors has relevant expertise and
extensive experiences that may contribute to the business of
the Group. The Company has complied with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules during the
financial year ended 31 December 2017. All independent non-
executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of
their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Every director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles"”).

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
the members of the Board. All of them are free to exercise
their independent judgement.

The Board is responsible for establishing the overall strategic
development and direction, setting business objectives
and development plans, monitoring the performance of
the business and senior management and making major
investments and funding decisions of the Group.

The daily business operations and administrative functions of
the Group are delegated to the management with department
heads responsible for different aspects of the business and
functions of the Group.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to formulate
overall strategy of the Group, monitor its financial
performance and maintain effective oversight over the
management. Sufficient notice of meetings is given to
Directors prior to a regular board meeting, and each director
is able to request inclusion of matters in the agenda for board
meeting. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, the annual
general meeting (“AGM") held during the financial year ended
31 December 2017 are summarised as follows:

TEERERE

BEEg (&)
REBEZE-T—+F+-_A=+—HLFHK
FERTESSSH BRREFRE ([
HBEFRg )L FELsFEanT:

Number of board Number of AGM
meetings attended/  attended/held in

held in 2017 2017
“E-tEEE/ ZB-LERR/
BANESE BANRR
RPN BAERENY
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong IRR%EHE 1211 11
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung Rl 1112 11
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Ms. LIN Weihuan HEELt 12112 1”7
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIFHTES
Ms. AN Na 74 L 12112 10
Professor ZHAQ Jinbao HeRUR 1712 7
Mr. CHEN Shaohua ROELE 12112 10

PROFESSIONAL TRAINING OF THE COMPANY
SECRETARY

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the company
secretary of the Company must take no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training in each financial year. The
company secretary, Mr. Ip Pui Sum, provided his training
records to the Company, indicating that he has taken no less
than 20 hours of relevant professional training by means of
attending seminars and reading relevant guideline materials
during the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including the duties and responsibilities
as set out in D.3 in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which
include the development and reviewing of policies and
practices on corporate governance and compliance with all
legal and regulatory requirements, monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, development and reviewing of the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors and reviewing the compliance with
the CG Code, and ensuring proper disclosure in the corporate
governance report of the Company.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Up to the date of this report,
all the Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by attending training
courses or reading materials on the topics related to corporate
governance and regulations or the Company’s business or their
duties and responsibilities.

The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 31 December 2017 is summarised below:

R ERRAE
EXZSNBERTEEERBRE (BFEL
MR+ IDIMEEFEET) B
BHERBHERE BRI ERLET
FIEZRMEERTE EBEEFLAEMRE
BEMEINIEFEERER HIEREH
HERANEERESENRTERREGRFM
(MB)RBEREFALERERTA U
RERRARAREERERRETIEREDN
R

EENREERERS

EREFHRSEFEIRER IBE
REMEMB R BREESENR
BATREFSEHIAFTENTR &
EAREAH MAEECEB2MET
HRIZKBIEABEEXRE R RRIIHARE
EBREFEHGIBENENN T2 M
SEEFEE-

=

AR E—E—+tF+_A=+—HLEHF
CEEEERESNEREIIREEBEINT

i

Attending seminar(s)/
programme(s)/reading
relevant materials in relation
to the business or Directors’

duties
LEERERD
ESRENEYE/
B VAF bl
ERNER
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong BEREE v
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung REREE v
Ms. LIN Weihuan MEBL L v
Ms. AN Na Zif gt v/
Professor ZHAQ Jinbao BeRUR v
Mr. CHEN Shaohua ROEL A v
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company
deviates from this provision because Mr. Zheng Jingdong
has been performing both the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer. The Directors consider that vesting two
roles in the same person provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership in the development and execution of the
Group's business strategies and is beneficial to the Group. The
balance of power and authorities is ensured by the operation
of the senior management and the Board, which comprise
experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board currently
comprises 2 executive Directors, 1 non-executive Director and
3 independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a
strong independence element in its composition.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meetings and scrutinising the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision, in
particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of the
Group’s strategy, performance and control.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
academic, professional and industry expertise and
management experience and have provided their professional
advices to the Board.

The independent non-executive Directors provide independent
advice on the Group’s business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of shareholders can be
taken into account, and the interests of the Company and its
shareholders can be protected.

As at 31 December 2017, the Board has three independent
non-executive Directors, Professor Zhao Jinbao, Mr. Chen
Shaohua and Ms. An Na, one of which, being Mr. Chen
Shaohua, possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise in
compliance with the requirements set out in Rules 3.10(1) and
(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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TERMS OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of 3 years, which will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three-
month notice in writing served by either party on the other.

All independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Directors are subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors of the Company
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
specific term. Such term is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at an AGM at least once every three years in
accordance with the Articles. The Articles of the Company
provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting, and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next AGM of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company currently has three committees, namely, the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”),
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Terms of reference of all Board Committees are in line with
the Code Provision and are available on the Stock Exchange's
website and the Company’s website at www.baofengmodern.
com. The Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the Company secretary of the
Company by mail at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Room 504, 5/F.,, OfficePlus @Sheung Wan, 93-
103 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The company
secretary forwards communications relating to matters within
the Board’s purview to the Board and communications relating
to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and
customer complaints, to the chief executives.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Board on 8
January 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise our Group’s financial reporting process and risk
management and internal control systems, effectiveness of
the Group’s internal audit function and review and monitor
appointment of the auditors and their independence.

The audit committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Shaohua, Professor
Zhao Jinbao and Ms. An Na, and Mr. Chen Shaohua was
the chairperson of the audit committee as at 31 December
2017. The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 have been reviewed by the audit committee.
The audit committee held 4 meetings during the financial
year ended 31 December 2017 to review interim and annual
financial results and reports, significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and risk
management systems, the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
audit function and scope of work and appointment of external
auditors.
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Details of the attendance of the audit committee are as follow:

BERZEeMBFLEFBOT

Members M8 Attendance of Meeting

SRLERR
Mr. CHEN Shaohua (Chairperson of audit committee) BROELE (EREECTR) 4/4
Professor ZHAO Jinbao HERIK 3/4
Ms. AN Na T+ 4/4

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the remuneration committee on 8
January 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the remuneration committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policies and structure of the remuneration for the Directors
and senior management and to set up a formal and
transparent procedure for determination of such remuneration
policies. It shall also make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management.

The remuneration committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. An Na (the chairperson of
the remuneration committee), Professor Zhao Jinbao and Mr.
Chen Shaohua as at 31 December 2017. The remuneration
committee held 1 meeting during the financial year ended
31 December 2017 to review and make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company, and to determine the remuneration packages of
executive Directors and senior management.

The details of the attendance of the remuneration committee
are as follows:
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Members M8 Attendance of Meeting

SRLERR
Ms. AN Na (Chairperson of remuneration committee) et (FMEEEEF) 1/1
Professor ZHAO Jinbao BERIE 17
Mr. CHEN Shaohua RAOZERLE 11
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Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration of
the members of the senior management of the Company by
band for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)
HEE (ARY)

TEERERE

BIETEIEXEBISE HE-_Z—+F
Z+—BHIEFEARASREEA

Number of individuals

AR

500,001 - 1,000,000
1,000,001 - 1,500,000

Details of remuneration of each Director for the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements contained in this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEEE

The Board established the nomination committee on 8 January
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the nomination committee are set out below:

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors;

(b)  to review the size, structure and composition of the
Board;

(o) to review the terms of reference, to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the re-
election of Directors to be proposed for shareholders’
approval at the AGM.

The nomination committee comprised the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Professor Zhao Jinbao (the
chairperson of the nomination committee), Mr. Chen Shaohua
and Ms. An Na as at 31 December 2017. The nomination
committee held 1 meeting during the financial year ended
31 December 2017 to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors, review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the re-election of Directors
at the AGM.
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The details of the attendance of the nomination committee are
as follows:

REAZBEHELEFBOT:

Members K& Attendance of Meeting

BEHERR
Professor ZHAQ Jinbao (Chairperson of nomination committee) — #HE&FRAK (RELZEETE) 1
Mr. CHEN Shaohua ROZERE n
Ms. AN Na ) n

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting out the
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in
order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Group considered the diversity of
the Board members can be achieved through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to
implement the Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

The nomination committee will review the Policy from time to
time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group, and in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The statement by the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the
independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective risk
management and internal control system in order to protect
the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests. The Group has
an internal audit function. The Board and audit committee also
conduct periodic reviews to ensure the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The
risk management and internal control systems include a well-
established corporate structure and organisation with clearly
defined lines of responsibility and authority. Each department
is responsible for its daily operations, and is also required to
implement and monitor the strategies and policies adopted by
the Board and effective employment of the resources of the
Company, in order to avoid misappropriation of resources and
damages made to the Company’s assets, and prevent against
errors and fraud.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Board
and audit committee conducted a review and assessment of
the effectiveness of the internal control system and procedures
based on information derived from discussions with the
management of the Company and its external auditor. The
Board and audit committee believe that the existing risk
management and internal control systems are adequate and
effective. The review covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions as well as the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

The Board has established a clearly defined scope of activities,
responsibility and authority for each department and its
management staff within the Group. The Group has a
defined goal for each department to accomplish, these goals
were discussed in the Board meeting and pass on to the
management through the executive Directors. These goals
will be implemented and closely monitored by the executive
Directors who shall review the operational and financial results
from time to time, and to take any necessary actions for the
improvement of its business activities.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Mr. Sze Ching Bor, Best Mark International Limited (“Best
Mark”) and Capital Vision International Limited (”Capital
Vision"”) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) entered
into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Company
on 8 January 2011 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”). The
undertakings and covenants stipulated under the Deed of
Non-Competition cover any business which is or may be in
competition with the business of any member of the Group
from time to time. The Deed of Non-Competition has become
effective since 28 January 2011. There has been no change
to the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2017. Please refer to the prospectus of
the Company dated 18 January 2011 for details of the Deed of
Non-Competition.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed in writing to
the Company of their compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition for disclosure in this annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Upon receiving the confirmation, the independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed the same as part of the
annual review process. In determining whether the Controlling
Shareholders had fully complied with the non-competition
undertakings in 2017 for the annual assessment, it was noted
that (a) the Controlling Shareholders declared that they had
fully complied with the non-competition undertakings in
the Deed of Non-Competition for the financial year ended
31 December 2017; (b) no new competing business was
reported by the Controlling Shareholders during the year
ended 31 December 2017; and (c) there was no particular
situation rendering the full compliance of the non-competition
undertakings being questionable. In view of the above,
the independent non-executive Directors confirmed that
all of the non-competition undertakings in the Deed of
Non-Competition were complied with by the Controlling
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration in respect of audit and non-
audit services provided by the Company’s auditor, Confucius
International CPA Limited were RMB920,000 and RMB251,000
respectively. Non-audit service represents agreed-upon
procedures services.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Information about the Group has been provided to the
shareholders through financial reports, announcements
and general meetings including AGMs in order to keep
shareholders well informed of the business activities and
directions of the Group. The Group has also established a
corporate website www.baofengmodern.com as a channel to
facilitate effective communication with the shareholders.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’'s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Room 504, 5/F, OfficePlus @Sheung
Wan, 93-103 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, there is no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHT

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
members of the Company holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

The same requirements and procedures also apply to any
proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

Appropriate insurance coverage for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors and
officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of
corporate activities of the Group has been arranged by the
Company.
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The Company strives to safeguard and balance the interests
of each stakeholder and follows the operating principle
“taste of life, happy production”. Facing the changes and
challenges of business environment, the Group never forget
to commit corporate social responsibility while pursuing
growth. In respect of the respective area of product safety,
product quality, energy saving and environmental protection,
social welfare and employee care, the Group will ensure
that the business operations can create value for the social,
human and natural capital, and actively fulfill corporate social
responsibility.

The Board is responsible for determining the environmental,
social and governance risks of the Group, formulating
environmental, social and governance strategies, ensuring
the establishment and maintenance of an effective internal
control system on environment, society and governance and
conducting regular analysis and independent assessment on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the aforementioned system
through internal audit functions.

The production and the major business of the Group are based
in the PRC. Therefore, the information and data included in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report are the
information and data of the Group that originates in the PRC.
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group always pays attention to environmental
protection. In respect of environmental management,
the 1SO14001 environmental management system has
been established and implemented since 2006, with
annual review supervised by third-party certification
institutions and regulatory authorities. The Group
formulates appropriate environmental management
operation control procedures, commits to environmental
protection through continuous enhancement on
production technology and product quality, introduction
and promotion of energy conservation, waste reduction,
clean production, improvement on pollution prevention
and control technology, and material recycling and reuse.
In 2017, the Group invested a total of approximately
RMB2.1 million for energy saving, environmental
protection, and emission and waste reduction. The Group
adheres to green and low-carbon development principle,
protects the environment as its mission, and integrates
environmental protection with enterprise development.
The Group strictly follows relevant national environmental
laws and regulations to minimize the impact of
production and operating activities to the environment to
the greatest extent, strives to achieve resource recycling
and non-hazardous objectives during production and
operation process and continues to build a green and
harmonious environment.
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A.1 Emissions Management

The Group strives to carry out clean production,
abides by the “Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and other relevant laws
and regulations, and reduces the environmental
impact of emissions generated from the production
and operation process. The Group ensures that the
emissions generated from production and operation
activities are in compliance with national standards
and the requirements of local environmental
protection authorities of the PRC. In the meantime,
the Group formulates and implements daily
inspection of pollution treatment facilities,
and formulates monthly, quarterly and annual
maintenance plans to ensure emission treatment
facilities are under normal operation, so as to
reduce the impact of emissions on the environment.

As summarised in Table 1 below, the Group’s
emissions during the reporting period included:

greenhouse gas (“GHG") and waste water.

Table 1: Total emissions of the Group in 2017

Emissions BBy Unit
GHG m = R i
Direct emission BEER (EE)
(Scope 1)
Company car oil NEFEH Tonnes
consumption
Natural gas KRR Tonnes

B PR (S8 E2)

Indirect emission

(Scope 2)
Externally-purchased INEEE Tonnes
electricity
Wastewater REK Tonnes

* The calculation for Intensity is the emissions amount

divided by revenue in the Group's reporting period.
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Intensity*
(Tonnes/RMB’000)
B

(W, AR%Fx)

Amount

BHE

30.43 0.0002

1,800.66 0.0143

2,728.31 0.0217

39,237.00 0.3126
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GHG Emission

Greenhouse gases included carbon dioxide,
methane and nitrous oxide, which were mainly
from externally-purchased electricity and fuel.
The Group is in compliance with the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution” and other
relevant laws and regulations, recycling certain
particles generated during the production process
to minimize exhaust gas emission to the greatest
extent. The Group uses clean natural gas and has
installed exhaust gas treatment equipment on
production boilers to effectively control exhaust
gas and soot generated during the combustion of
boilers and ensure the emission concentration meets
the standard stipulated in the “Emission Standard of
Air Pollutants for Boiler”.

Wastewater

Wastewater generated from the production process
and daily domestic sewage from employees will
be collected for further processing. No sewage is
untreated or illegally released to external waters.
The related procedures are in compliance with the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”.
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Solid Wastes

The main solid wastes produced during the
production process are remaining materials and
scrap materials of finished products produced by
the Group. To minimize the amount of solid waste
generated during the production process, the
Group strictly abides by the principles of recycling
and reuse, as well as the provisions of the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste”. The Group carries out hazard elimination
treatment, classification and recycling on solid
wastes pursuant to the “Solid Waste Management
Operations Guide” of the Group, including (i)
recycling and reuse of grinding powder, scrap; (ii)
selling of cardboard boxes, paper products to other
paper mills for recycling and reuse; and (iii) unified
recycling of domestic wastes for hazard elimination
treatment, etc.

Noise Control

The source of noise is mainly from the noise
generated by mechanical operations during the
production process. The equipments with larger
noise are all placed indoor, while noise reduction,
sound insulation, shock absorption and other
measures are adopted in order to comply with the
relevant provisions of the “Emission Standard for
Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary”.
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BR HERERBKSE

A2. Use of Resources A2. ERERA
Summarised in Table 2 below, the resources used by AEERBREHAFAERANE
the Group during the reporting period were energy, RABEIR K BRARBEM
water, paper and packaging materials. B TR
Table 2: Total resources consumption of the Group RO AEE T+ FEER
in 2017 ERE
Resources EiR Unit Ef{u Amount Intensity*
(Unit/RMB’000)
BE*
HE (B/AR¥TR)
Energy EENH
Direct consumption HEERE
Petrol YRR Litres A7+ 13,395.00 0.1067
Natural gas KAR, M2 K 823,663.00 6.5630
Indirect consumption BEEPEr=S
Electricity TH KWh FRE 3,363,304.00 26.7990
Water 7K Tonnes Mg 40,774.00 0.3249
Paper S Tonnes A 2.46 0.0000
Packaging BN
By plastic BRI Tonnes A 12.62 0.0001
By paper AR EA Tonnes WA 351.37 0.0028

* The calculation for Intensity is the resources
consumption amount divided by revenue in the
Group's reporting period.

The Group strives to fully recycle resources as
much as possible during product development and
production process, constantly pursuing energy
conservation and emission reduction.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2017

* EENFETASAEERSE
HAEIRA SRR AU -

AEBBNONEERITEMEE
BRSBTS RN A
BIR - THESKEHREBERBE



P

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group has implemented “Green Procurement”
policy to actively encourage suppliers to establish
production management system with environmental
protection and energy saving, purchase
environmentally friendly raw materials in higher
priority through procurement mechanism and supply
chain management, so as to facilitate suppliers to
reduce waste of resources and pollution.

The Group also regularly inspects and reviews
energy consumption, through internal policies and
advanced technologies to prevent wastage so as to
conserve energy and resources. Specific measures
include: (i) reduction of natural gas consumption
through the installation of boiler thermal oil
recycling pipeline for heat recycling and reuse; (ii)
reduction of hydraulic oil consumption by the use
of hydraulic oil precipitation; and (iii) reduction of
raw material input by recycling the grinding powder
of grinding workshop and the scrap of cutting and
clipping workshop. Other actively advocated routine
resource conservation measures include: (i) replacing
high energy-consumption equipment with the more
energy-saving one; (ii) turning off unnecessary
equipment, lighting and air conditioning not in use;
(iii) strengthening inspection and maintenance of
faucets, water pipes and water storage facilities and
other water supply systems to avoid any leakage;
and (iv) announcing company information in
electronic form (such as e-mail or electronic bulletin)
if possible and reducing paper use with double-
sided printing.

To meet the energy-saving and emission reduction
targets of the government, the Group reports
and evaluates energy-saving new technologies
and emission reduction, and develops energy
performance indicators to strictly control energy
consumption, improve and enhance energy
management.

In addition, the Group encourages employees to
submit energy-saving proposals actively, reduces
power consumption, promotes continuous energy
management training, etc. in order to enhance
the knowledge on energy conservation and
environmental protection policies and energy saving
awareness among employees, so that the resources
can be used more efficiently.
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BR HERERBKSE

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The main environmental impact of the production
business is the use of boiler and electricity in its
manufacturing process. The operation of the boiler
and the use of electricity generate both direct and
indirect GHG emissions. To minimise the impact, the
production and operation sites of the Group have
been evaluated during the initial planning period in
respect of the relevant industrial land environment
and related regulations and the selected production
sites are located in the areas permitted by the local
government. During the production and operation
process, collection and treatment facilities are
installed for proper treatment of pollutants and
emissions in order to ensure meeting the standard
required by local regulations before discharge. The
Group also assesses the feasibility of environmental
protection facilities from time to time, adopts
effective environmental protection measures and
programs, including the prevention and control of
pollution and exhaust gas emission, sustainable
use of resources and ecological and environmental
protection, more active support and promotion of
social and environmental sustainable development.

B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR

As a responsible employer, the Group is fully in
compliance with the relevant national laws and
regulations in respect of remuneration, compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversification, anti-
discrimination and other employee benefits and welfare.
The Group also regards employees as its most valuable
asset and strives to provide the competitive salaries,
welfare and working environment for them.

B1. Employment

The Group adheres to fair, impartial and open
employment principles, providing all employees
equal opportunities and fair treatment. The Group
strictly abides by the relevant provisions of the
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and the “The Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”. No arbitrary dismissal of an
employee is allowed; the rights and obligations
of both parties to the employment contract are
clearly stated, the legitimate rights of employees are
protected, in order to establish a harmonious and
stable employment relationship.
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The Group recruits personnel in line with its
strategic requirements through various channels
like campus interview, social recruitment, network
recruitment in a fair and impartial way. The
Group provides employees with comprehensive
social security benefits, including basic salary,
pensions, incentive bonuses, medical insurance,
injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing
provident fund. The Group will also provide other
employee benefits depending on job nature,
including meals, uniforms and fully equipped
accommodation. The human resources department
of the Group conducts regular reviews and updates
on the relevant company policies from time to
time pursuant to the latest laws and regulations.
Employee performance appraisal, management
position promotion, and other company policies
are implemented to provide career development
path to employees like internal promotions, on
the job training. To attract high-quality talents and
retain outstanding employees, the Group launches
Share Option Scheme and timely conducts reviews
on salary with reference to market standards,
formulates competitive salary and bonus system,
and provides competitive and fair remuneration
and benefits based on personal performance,
professional qualifications, and experience.

The Group treats all employees equally. No
employees are discriminated against on the grounds
of gender, race, religion, age, disability, family
status, sexual orientation, nationality, political
opinion, ethnic background or any other non-
working related factors. Each newly-recruited
employee is required to sign a labour contract,
which clearly defines the rights, responsibilities,
and obligations of both the employee and the
employer, and all employees are entitled to
terminate the employment relationship with the
related employment company of the Group. The
entering, amendment, cancellation and termination
of the relevant employment contract are strictly in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
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B2. Health and Safety B2. REHEZE
The Group attaches great importance to the health AEBSEERBE IRE
and safety of employees and has obtained OHSAS K#ZZ BRMBMBABOHSAS
18001:2007 Occupational Health and Safety 180012007 (R FELZ 2 E R
Management System certification, Work Safety gg%wm T2 HEERELR
Standardisation certification. The Group has set up o REBER ZZH%%%{LJ??ZKZ_—E
an occupational health and safety management gﬁ%% ﬁ%i?é,\a '
organisation and a safety production committee BRIRE (BERRT S
and strictly abides by the relevant standards of %) ‘<§’£\$§%‘%i€’§ﬂ§%$%ﬁ
“Occupation Health and Safety Management #) SHERENT AEER
System” and “Basic Standard for Work Safety BEY2HEENESERLE H5]L
Standardisation”. The Group also adheres to SHEETEREDEM@EAER T’E
the principles of safety production management RIZ BANTEERELLS
and formulates the regulatory system of safety I8 | /5 B PR i E 2% & ﬁ1i§1$
production management and operation rules for ERE YEREEILX2HE
all positions. The safety and health of employees o

are effectively protected by the implementation
of various job safety management systems and
the clarification and definition of safe production
responsibilities of all positions.

E_'ﬁ:.: OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAF E:
-r:,‘? MANAGEMENT SYSTEM CERTIFICATE

-.-"'
\

EflE@T, o0 EEDEIS L RAMATNSRD
HiER

BHELE R

R E T A

i s B Pk e gt B T N T AT
OHSAS 18001: 2007 GRIT 28001-2011 R R WA RO R TR REE
Batety bl \ CHSAS 150012007 GEVT 28001-2011

EEEENTHTERERNNRE

= 7R o @

HJHHILIEEIDH

£ 001E107 H I:II]I.H.IIT
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To provide and maintain a safe and healthy working
environment at all times, the Group regularly
provides various kinds of work protective gears to
employees in accordance with working requirements
of each position and supervises and educates them
to wear and utilize correctly; appoints responsible
staff for the safe production of each department
and implements various safety education; installs
dust removal and waste discharging devices on
facilities generating dust and exhaust gas; controls
noise transmission of machinery exceeding the noise
limit or provides protective gears to employees. Fire
safety inspection, training, and drills are regularly
organized to improve safety awareness and self-
protection of employees.

The Group also strictly abides by the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety”,
“Rule for Storage of Chemical Dangers”, “Special
Equipment Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and other relevant laws and regulations, to
build a safe working environment.

Development and Training

In respect of human resources training, the
Group provides employees with induction and
continuous training to promote their career
development. For newly-recruited employees,
the Group provides comprehensive orientation
training of corporate culture, operation processes,
work health and safety, management policies and
business development. The Group also encourages
employees to participate in on the job training and
provides appropriate subsidies to eligible employees.
Based on job nature, the Group offers trainings
of different types and levels to newly recruited
employees, junior supervisors, senior supervisors
and key personnel, like management and
production project training, aiming at constantly
improving the overall quality of employees, so as to
maintain sustainable business development in the
future.
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B4. Labour Standards B4. % T %A

42

To prevent illegal employment of child labour,
underage and forced labour, the Group has
established a well-developed mechanism.
The employee manual stipulates that selected
candidates must meet the legal age. Before
confirming the employment, the human resources
department of the Group will require applicants to
provide valid identity documents to ensure that they
are legally employed and fully in compliance with
the latest relevant laws and regulations prohibiting
child labour and forced labour. The Group also
conducts regular inspection and review of the
implementation of human resources policies to
eliminate child labour and forced labour.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant provisions
of the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and the “The Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, and set reasonable
working hours and leaves for employees pursuant
to local employment ordinances and employment
contracts with employees. The Group has installed a
human resources computerized attendance system
for effective management of staff working hours
and vacation dates. If overtime work is required,
employees may obtain appropriate overtime
payment or compensatory leave under the relevant
employment contract or labour legislation. To
prevent forced overtime work, overtime must be
agreed by employees voluntarily. During office
hours, employees are allowed to move freely within
the factory or office area (except prohibited special
areas), and it is not mandatory for employees to live
in the factory quarters.
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B5. Supply Chain Management

The Group attaches great importance to sustainable
and reliable supply chain to ensure sustainable
enterprise development. The Group has formulated
and implemented supplier management system.
Regarding supplier selection, the Group conducts
qualification inspection, factory visit and other
assessment processes on potential suppliers with
the principles of fairness, impartiality, openness
and honesty. Inspection areas include the
production capacity, product quality, service quality,
environmental protection, occupational health and
safety of the supplier.

In order to avoid issues such as varied quality of
products and non-standardisation of materials,
the goods and materials provided by suppliers
are detected by the internal department of the
Group or third-party testing organisations, so as
to select qualified suppliers. Besides, the relevant
departments conduct annual re-evaluation and
assessment on the qualified suppliers for the
supervision of product quality. At the same time,
the Group closely monitors procurement process
to ensure that the procured products meet the
requirements of production technology and product
quality.
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B6. Product Responsibility

The Group attaches great importance to product
quality and safety, strictly abides by the “Product
Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests”,
formulates and implements quality policies to
ensure product quality. The Group has obtained
ISO9001 quality management system certification
in 2003. During the process of mass production,
quality control personnel performs sampling
tests on raw materials, semi-finished goods and
finished goods for tracking and identification of
any potentially inferior products and preventing
problematic material misuse in production. All
finished products must be specifically checked
before packaging to ensure they are qualified. For
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
did not receive any complaints from regulatory
authorities or consumers regarding product safety
and did not recover any products due to product
safety and health reasons. The Group is not aware
of any material non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations on health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters related to products
sold during the year.
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The Group maintains close and good business
relationships with product distributors, highly
protects the privacy and business secrets of
distributors and strives to ensure timely response to
the feedback of customers and instant response to
product inquiries.

The promotion activities of the Group’s products are
carried out by advertising agencies in accordance
with the Group’s policy of privacy, its business
strategy, and the “Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the "Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and the
“Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China”.

Anti-corruption

The Group adheres to the core value of integrity and
strictly abides by the provisions of the “Company
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Anti-
Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic
of China” and the “Interim Provisions on Banning
of Commercial Bribery” and other relevant laws
and regulations. The Group has formulated
“Baofeng Personnel Management Regulations”
and other related systems to standardise various
business activities. An internal monitoring system
is set up for strengthening anti-fraud, anti-
extortion, anti-corruption and bribery supervision,
while a reporting mechanism and a reward and
punishment committee are also set up to strengthen
management and promote compliance, so as to
prevent and eliminate fraud, extortion, bribery
and corruptions on various aspects of operation
and management. The Group prohibits any acts of
fraud, extortion, corruption and bribery, prohibits
employees from taking advantages of their
powers and duties for corruption, embezzlement,
encroachment of corporate property, acceptance of
bribes and kickbacks, etc. Through various measures
like training and promotion, the Group strengthens
the communication with employees in respect
of internal control and anti-fraud, anti-extortion,
anti-corruption, anti-commercial bribery, so as to
enhance their awareness in this regard.
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B8.

T HERERRSE

The Group has formulated supplier relationship
guidelines and government authority relationship
guidelines. Standard professional code of ethics and
conduct is formulated for the communication with
business partners, suppliers, customers, etc. and
employees are required to follow strictly.

Community Investment

In the meantime of corporate development, the
Group does not overlook the responsibility of a
citizen of the community, and actively participates
in social welfare activities, taking practical actions
to bear its due responsibility as a corporate citizen.
The Group engages in social welfare activities, such
as social welfare investment, community event
participation, school donation, schooling support
of employees’ children, charitable donations, active
participation in blood donations, condolence to
vulnerable groups, etc.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Jingdong

Mr. Zheng Jingdong, aged 52, is the Chairman of the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group and an executive
Director. He has been appointed as a Director since 21 July
2008. Mr. Zheng has more than 10 years of experience in
the slipper business in the PRC. He has been appointed as a
director of Quanzhou Baofeng Shoes Co Ltd since 28 March
2007 and as a director of BAOF International Limited since
21 July 2008. He has been appointed as the Chairman of the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 10 May
2013.

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung, aged 48, has been appointed as
the executive Director, Vice-Chairman of the Board and
the authorised representative under the Listing Rules with
effect from 3 February 2015. Mr. Leung holds a degree of
bachelor of arts in Business Studies from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 1991 and a degree of master in
Business Administration from the University of New South
Wales in 1996. He is qualified as a certified professional
marketer and has over 20 years of extensive experience in
business administration and marketing. Mr. Leung is the legal
representative of Bay Zu Precision Co., Ltd QtEHEZRHL A
R 2 &]) since November 2011. Mr. Leung joined 2D Material
Technology Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, as the chief executive officer in November 2014.
Mr. Leung would focus on developing the business of material
technology and 020 business for the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Lin Weihuan

Ms. Lin Weihuan, aged 36, has been appointed as the non-
executive Director since 7 January 2016. Ms. Lin obtained a
bachelor of business degree in financial management from
La Trobe University in Melbourne, Australia in 2005. She
later obtained a master of business degree in professional
accounting from Victoria University in Melbourne, Australia in
2006. Ms. Lin has over five years of experience in accounting.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. An Na

Ms. An Na, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 June 2010. She has been an executive
editor of A B & T 2 H fr4t (China Light Industry Press) since
1982. She has also been a vice president of 1t (JmEE)
754 (Beijing Rayli Magazine House) since 2003 at which
she has been responsible for managing and coordinating the
publication of several fashion magazines. In February 2015,
she resigned her post in Beijing Rayli Magazine House. She
received an editor’s qualification from E#fzE A E EEEE
% B9 (State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission) in 2008. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Engineering with a major in the study of leather from Fa1L#E T
% 207 (Northwest Institute of Light Industry) (now known as
BR7E Rl R A Z (Shaanxi University of Science and Technology))
in 1982.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2017

FHTES
MEBZ

WEE L 365k BEZZE—~F—H+tH
REZTAFNTEZT - MLLTR_ZZ
AFESRMNBEANEAAE( Trobe
University) & Bl B IR 22+ 24 - K H1&
RIBEERNFESBMNBRAEZH K
B2 (Victoria University) B ¥ @t ¥E L2
fL-MEZETREFHEAEEBRFLERS -

BIYEHITES

Zifz+

izt 585 R_E—FF A=+
HEZTABIUIFHNTEST B— LN
FRETPESTELRLEERS T A
“ET=FRBRFTIERE GRB) Mt al
HE BEEBENRES AR EHERNT
BN _T—RAF_ABBTIRE Ui
B) MadEtE - BN ST N\FERG
EEEEEREEZEERTIERESE
BeZR IR — AN ZFESHILETE
By (RBRAREAE) TIRE T84
FIERE-



P

Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Chen Shaohua

Mr. Chen Shaohua, aged 51, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 3 February 2015.
Mr. Chen graduated from the Open University of China (4
KE M AE) (previously known as China Central Radio and
TV University (F R ZEER KE), and obtained a bachelor's
degree in Management majoring in Accounting from Beijing
Technology and Business University (3t 5 T AZ) in 2010.
He is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CICPA) and qualified as certified assets valuer,
certified tax agent, certified real estate valuer, certified cost
engineer and certified land valuer in the PRC. Mr. Chen is a
senior accountant and senior economist in the PRC. He has
over 20 years of extensive experience in accounting, audit
and tax matters. Mr. Chen is currently the chairman of the
board of directors and legal representative of auditing firm, tax
company, asset and property valuation company in the PRC.

Professor Zhao Jinbao

Professor Zhao Jinbao, aged 55, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 3 February 2015.
Professor Zhao graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology
(WBHE T % KE) of the PRC and obtained a bachelor of
engineering degree in Electrochemistry in 1984 and a master’s
degree in Engineering in 1987. Professor Zhao further obtained
a doctor’s degree in Engineering from Kyoto University in
Japan in 1996. He has been a professor of Physical Chemistry
in the Xiamen University (EF9XE) of the PRC since 2011.
He has over 20 years of extensive experience in research and
development in the field of engineering and chemistry and was
recruited as one of the experts in The Recruitment Program
of Global Experts (85 & X A 3l#5H3]), also known as
Thousand Talents Program (F A&t &) in the PRC in 2011.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's
principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2017 and a discussion on the Group's future
business development and its principal risks and uncertainties
are provided in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group can be found in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is provided in
the “Five-Year Financial Summary” on page 4 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group always pays attention to environmental protection.
Details of the environmental policies and performance of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to update the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations in various countries, particularly in the
PRC and Hong Kong, applicable to it to ensure compliance.
During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on it.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are valuable assets.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to
employees and is periodically reviewed with reference to
industry practice. Discretionary bonuses and share options
may be awarded to employees according to the assessment
of individual performance. During the year under review, the
Group considered the relationship with employees was good
and the turnover rate is acceptable.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its
immediate and long-term goals. The Group has been working
continuously with its suppliers to improve the standard of
raw materials and aiming at delivering products with high
quality to its customers. All key customers and suppliers have
a close and long term relationship with the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The result of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 73 to
184.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the financial information of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 29 and 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law of the Cayman lIslands, amounted to approximately
RMB20,901,000 The amount of RMB20,901,000 includes the
Company’s share premium account and contributed surplus of
RMB811,351,000 in aggregate at 31 December 2017, which
may be distributed provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, sales to
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 89.8% of
the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to 60.3%.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 24.4% of the total purchases for the year and purchase
from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to
5.9% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Chairman and the Directors during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

o Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong (Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer)
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (Vice-chairman)

o Non-Executive Directors:
Ms. LIN Weihuan

° Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. AN Na
Professor ZHAO Jinbao
Mr. CHEN Shaohua

Pursuant to Articles 84(1) and (2), at each AGM one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at the AGM
at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election. In accordance with Articles 84(1) and
(2), Mr. Zheng Jingdong and Ms. An Na shall retire from office
by rotation at the AGM. Being eligible, Mr. Zheng Jingdong
and Ms. An Na will offer themselves for re-election as an
executive Director and an independent non-executive Director,
respectively, at the AGM.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
47 to 49 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
our Company for an initial term of 3 years, which will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three-month notice
in writing served by either party on the other. The details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors are revealed on note
9 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors had entered, or was proposing to
enter, into any service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years as required by the Articles of Association.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles, and subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, the Directors and officers of the Group shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
from or against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such
permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout
the year ended 31 December 2017. The Company has
arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved for transactions as disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements, none of the Directors was
materially interested, directly or indirectly, in any contract or
arrangement during the year which is significant in relation to
the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates
had any material interest in business which competed or might
compete with the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
(i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company referred to therein; or
(iii) pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

Interests in the Shares and underlying Shares:
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Notes:

(1) The percentage has been calculated based on the total number
of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2017 (i.e. 1,084,059,608
shares).

(2) These represent the number of shares which will be allotted
and issued to the respective Directors upon the exercise of the
share options granted to each of them under the Share Option
Scheme. Accordingly, each of them was regarded as interested
in the underlying Shares.

(3) The letter “L” denotes a long position in the Shares or
underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR OTHER SIMILAR RIGHTS

All conversion rights attached to the convertible notes in the
principal amounts of HK$110,880,000 and HK$73,920,000
issued by the Company on 16 December 2015 and 2 February
2016 respectively will mature on 16 December 2018 and
2 February 2019 respectively. There was no conversion of
convertible notes during the year ended 31 December 2017.
Details of convertible notes of the Company are shown in note
26 to the financial statements.

All conversion rights attached to the warrants issued by the
Company on 21 June 2012 matured on 22 December 2017.
No warrants have been exercised since the issue date of the
warrants. Details of warrants of the Company are shown in
note 26 to the financial statements.

Details of share options of the Company are included in the
section “Share Option Scheme” below and also shown in note
30 to the financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME BRETE

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 8 January ARNRIR T ——F— A\ B ERQNE R E
2011. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note HE BB EZNEBEIHEN G A MBR
30 to the consolidated financial statements. KME30 -

The following table discloses the outstanding share options TEXBEER-_ZE—+F+_HA=1+—8B%

under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2017: e fE st 2118 T E S AR T (R BE AR 4 -
Number of share options
BREA
Qutstanding
Outstanding ~ Granted  Exercised  Cancelled  Forfeited a3 Exercise price
asat1 duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe  December  Exercise per share
Date of grant ' January 2017 year year year year 017 period ? (HKS)
RZZ-tf RZZ-tf
-f-A e ER SRf%R
Name or Category of particpants ~ $EANKE 28R RERE HATE ERRE  EAME  EMEE  EARN HAGE  fERY (%1)
Executive Directors Yz
ZHENG Jingdong g2z 1011202015 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000 A 081
101202015 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 B 081
101202015 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 ( 081
101202015 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 D 081
1011202015 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 t 081
LEUNG Tsz Chung 2 1011202015 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000 B 081
Sub-total st 14,000,000 - - - - 14,000,000
Employees and consultants of FEEESREBSST
the Group in aggregate
1011202015 10,502,000 - - - (1,085,000) 9417000 A 081
1011202015 15,176,000 - - - (1820,000) 13,356,000 B 081
1011202015 2,970,000 - - - (2,.275,000) 695,000 ( 081
1011202015 2,376,000 - - - (1,820,000) 556,000 D 081
1011202015 2,376,000 - - - (1,820,000) 556,000 t 081
24612016 50,245,000 - - - (1050000 52,140,000 f 0.67
24612016 36,060,000 - - - (140,000)  35920,000 6 0.67
24612016 3,075,000 - - - (175,000) 2,900,000 H 0.67
2462016 2,460,000 - - - (140,000) 2,320,000 | 0.67
24612016 2,460,000 - - - (140,000) 2,320,000 J 0.67
161212016 1,425,000 - - - - 1,425,000 K 0.99
161212016 1,900,000 - - - - 1,900,000 L 0.99
161212016 2,375,000 - - - - 2,375,000 M 0.99
161212016 1,900,000 - - - - 1,900,000 N 0.99
161212016 1,900,000 - - - - 1,900,000 0 0.99
Sub-total st 139,200,000 - - - (9,520,000) 129,680,000
Total i3 153,200,000 - - - (9,520,000) 143,680,000
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Notes:

The closing prices of the Shares immediately before the date of
grant on 10 December 2015, 24 June 2016 and 16 December
2016 were HK$0.79, HK$0.69 and HK$0.99 respectively.

The respective exercise periods of the share options granted
are as follows:

A: From 10 December 2015 to 9 December 2020;

B: From 10 December 2016 to 9 December 2020;

C: From 10 December 2017 to 9 December 2020;

D: From 10 December 2018 to 9 December 2020;
E: From 10 December 2019 to 9 December 2020;
F: From 24 June 2016 to 23 June 2021;

G: From 24 June 2017 to 23 June 2027,

H: From 24 June 2018 to 23 June 2021;

From 24 June 2019 to 23 June 2021;

J: From 24 June 2020 to 23 June 2021;

K: From 16 December 2016 to 15 December 2021;

L: From 16 December 2017 to 15 December 2021;

M: From 16 December 2018 to 15 December 2021;

N: From 16 December 2019 to 15 December 2021; and

0: From 16 December 2020 to 15 December 2021;

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercised period.
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3. Exercise condition: Provided always that a grantee of share
options shall remain as a Director, an employee or a consultant
of the Company or its subsidiaries, at the time of exercise of
his or her share options.

4. The number and/or exercise price of the share options may be
subject to adjustments in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other changes in the Company’s share capital.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of "Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures” and “Share Option Scheme” above,
at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERREEMATRARSG RE
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS EROPTHNESZEAE

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to the Directors m:%ﬁftﬁ_"":ﬂ =t—8 TJfK%%&
and chief executives of the Company, the following persons Z’S/Aﬁjigﬁﬁj\éﬁﬁ_ﬂ ' D/(T}\i?bf
or corporations (other than the Directors or chief executives (§$§R$@a+fgf7ﬂ\(/\\§@9‘\>%\ﬁ§
of the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have Tﬁiﬂtﬁ E?Hﬁﬁﬁp%ﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬂéﬁ%ﬁﬁ
interests and short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares *ETJ?%?%%&E{ 151‘%15'J%XV?‘B$2&35?‘FE@
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the 1'%XZEW$@ET§§§&%EEW$ET%§§&
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and be ,Hﬂfé:i{l%WJ%336{%25%/@35@%‘55%32%
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 RITHEARRR KRBT

of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company were as

follows:

Interests and short positions in the Shares and REBRORAEBROTFNESZR KA
underlying Shares:

Percentage of the

Capacity and nature of Number of Shares/ Company’s issued
Name interests underlying Shares share capital®
HEAAR S BITRA
=X SO RERME B EHEBRG B BAL®
Mr. Sze Interest in controlled 285,879,975 (L) 26.37%
corporation
SEEAE® PR SEE ) #Em
Ms. Tsang Shuk Ping @ Spousal Interest 285,879,975 (L) 26.37%
WER @ Ao B #E
Best Mark © Beneficial owner/Other 240,720,365 (L) 22.20%
BB AN HA
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Percentage of the

Capacity and nature of Number of Shares/ Company’s issued
Name interests underlying Shares share capital®
ERDBEBITRE
=L SHRESRNE B0, HEER G % E BAL®
Total Shine Investments Limited Beneficial owner 233,155,792 (L) 21.51%
("Total Shine™) @
ERlEA A
Mr. Zhang Honghui® Interest in controlled 233,155,792 (L) 21.51%
corporation
SRR PR A B 1) #E 2
Bluestone ® Beneficial owner 220,000,000 (L) 20.29%
ERo ERlEA A
Mr. Zhuang Chaohui ® Interest in controlled 220,000,000 (L) 20.29%
corporation
EFARE 4O FIT 2 A B B #E 2
Notes: Ff & -

(1) Mr. Sze is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by (1) % A AR B Best Mark & Capital

Best Mark and Capital Vision International Limited ("Capital Vision International Limited ([ Capital
Vision" ). Best Mark and Capital Vision are wholly owned Vision | ) AT #5 f% 15 7 # /5 #E 25 © Best
and controlled by Mr. Sze and are interested in 240,720,365 Mark & Capital VisionfA 2 S £ 2 B A
Shares and 45,159,610 Shares respectively, representing K2 - 5 Bl 52240,720,365 % i 5 &
approximately 22.20% and 4.17%, respectively of the issued 45,159,610 IRt R % o B4R
Shares. EREBITRMA22.20% K%4.17% ©

(2)  Ms. Tsang Shuk Ping, the spouse of Mr. Sze, is deemed to be (2) SEEEZEEREZITHER/EFLE

interested in Mr. Sze's interests in the Company. AR ANB -
(3) Best Mark is wholly owned and controlled by Mr. Sze. (3) Best MarkfA £ e E 2 B A M IZ |
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(4) Total Shine is interested in 233,155,792 Shares. Mr. Zhang
Honghui, who wholly owns and controls Total Shine, is
deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Total Shine is
interested.

(5) Bluestone is interested in 220,000,000 underlying Shares
under the convertible notes which was issued to it pursuant
to the terms of the acquisition agreement as detailed in the
circular dated 25 November 2015. Mr. Zhuang Chaohui,
who wholly owns and controls Bluestone, is deemed to be
interested in the underlying Shares in which Bluestone is
interested.

(6) The percentage has been calculated based on the total number
of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2017 (i.e. 1,084,059,608
shares).

(7) The letters “L” and “S” denote the person’s long and short
position respectively in the Shares or underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company was
aware of any other person (other than the Directors or the
chief executives of the Company) or corporation which had,
or was deemed or taken to have, an interest or short position
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and be recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transaction was entered into or in existence
during the year. The related party transactions disclosed in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements do not
fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

The Company adopted a share option scheme to motivate
and reward its Directors and eligible employees. Details
of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

Confucius International CPA Limited was appointed as auditor
of the Company on 13 February 2018 upon the resignation of
Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited. Apart from this, there has been
no change of auditors of the Company in the past three years.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Confucius International
CPA Limited as the Company’s auditor is to be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

ZHENG Jingdong
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

A .
E_ AL ERETETEF IS Fr AR oda

International CPA Limited

Confucius

TO THE MEMBERS OF BAOFENG MODERN
INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Baofeng Modern International Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 73 to 184, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Material uncertainty in relation to going concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017 have been prepared
assuming that the Group will continue as a going concern.
We draw attention to note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately RMB435,370,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017 and, as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB183,775,000. These conditions indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s
arrangements to address the going concern issue are also
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that may result from the outcome of this
uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Valuation of trade receivables

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key audit
matter due to the use of judgement and estimates in assessing
the recoverability of trade receivables.

In determining the allowance for trade receivables, the
management considers the credit history including default or
delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent settlements
and aging analysis of the trade receivables.

At 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is RMB28,535,000, net of allowance for doubtful
debts of RMB2,689,000.

Details of the trade receivables are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Our procedures in relation to valuation on trade receivables
included:

o obtaining an understanding of the Group’s procedures on
credit limits and credit periods given to customers with
the management;

o evaluating the design and implementation of controls
applied by management in determining the allowance for
doubtful debts;

o evaluating the management’s impairment assessment of
trade receivables;

e  testing the accuracy of the receivables aging analysis and
the recoverability of amounts due from debtors through
circularisation, testing of subsequent receipts and
corroborative enquiry;

o confirming the existence and assessing the valuation
of significant receivables as at year end by tracing to
subsequent/recent receipts and sending confirmation
requests;

o assessing the reasonableness of the methods and
assumptions used by the management to estimate the
allowance for bad and doubtful debts;

o assessing, validating and discussing with the
management and evaluating their assessment on the
recoverability of the outstanding debts and the adequacy
of allowance made based on the trade receivables
aging analysis, collections subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, past collection history and trend analysis
and knowledge of the businesses, with focus on long
outstanding debts and debts which are past due but not
impaired; and

o checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the information included in the impairment
assessment of trade receivables.

We found that the estimation and judgement made by
management in respect of the recoverability of trade
receivables were supportable by the credible evidence.
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Impairment assessment of intangible assets

As set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements
at 31 December 2017, the Group has significant intangible
assets arising from the acquisition of technology know-how
in 2015; 020 distribution vending system and capitalisation
of deferred development costs in relation to the research and
development of manufacturing and application technology of
graphene material on sterilizing chips, energy storage materials
for batteries and pressure sensitive lighting devices for shoes
which are incurred in 2016.

Management is required to carry out an impairment
assessment on these intangible assets at least annually.
Independent external valuations were obtained in order to
support management estimates. These assessments of the
recoverable amounts involved significant management'’s
assessment and judgement on the key assumptions used in
cash flow projections and profit forecasts based on financial
budgets approved by management, which is judgemental and
based on a number of assumptions.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
intangible assets included:

o Evaluating the independent external valuers competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

o Assessing the valuation methodologies adopted by
management which are disclosed in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements;

o Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions in the
valuations based on our knowledge of the business and
industry;

o Reconciling input data used in the profit forecasts and
cash flow forecasts to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and considering the reasonableness of
those budgets;

o Considering the potential impact of reasonably possible
downside changes in these key assumptions; and

o Discussing with the management and the independent
valuation valuers engaged by the management to
understand the assumptions they used in building up the
discounted cash flow model.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
(continued)

o Checking on sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of
the input data used.

e  Challenging the assumptions used in business plans and
development plans adopted by the Group in relation to
the technology know-how and 020 distribution vending
system.

o Reviewing the detailed analysis prepared by the
management for the deferred development costs
and testing the reconciliation of amounts reported to
accounting records.

o Discussing with the management about the nature
of work being completed for each product and their
assessment of the areas of judgement for each product,
in particular, the stage of technical development and
economic feasibility.

o Updating our understanding of management's process
for assessing whether any research and development
expenses has met the recognition criteria under IAS 38.

Based on our procedures described, we found the recognition
and impairment assessment on intangible assets to be
reasonable.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, but does not
included the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

B %A RS

BB B GREMBRRARENE
E(&)
ERBREBBRFENRITREANITHEZ
— REFFHNBREPERFZHE LR
BRERAER - FAFIR

o BRI MARh B EREE SRR T B BUAR
EMBHRRFEERBERRANEA
B R NIRRT ARYZE
B A R BEER T B ME B B E AR
EERBRMERAER - 0 EGE
AR hER BE BEER ER
PRtk % B A BB B - It R
AL IR A HGF M B MM EA SRR
) R\ e = 1 K BE 25 3R IR 8 AR T B 2K A
B K #H AR R AL 0 R\

o  THREEZMBMAANIMERL  AEKF
EEEBATBEENEFRF K
WIEREE BEREAEENER
HERER -

s HEEFAERASTHRNGEER
R AT AR B AR -

s HEERARBELLSHERNSE
PEME L e - WRIBATEREL R
mEEEAFERAAEEER
4§ BEEENFERLERNELER
REMNSEXERAARNEATEE
o WMBMRRFEEERTEES
A EERBEREPIRFERE
TEEAMBHmRPOARBMBKE N
BRABRETR RIRMEEHRIEE
REBR - BAINERIENEER
P EE SRS B EPTEUS BT R
oA RREFBRKFBRALE

B ERBETRERERE-

s HMHEFREMBHRRNERLZHRIA
BELAT BREE URESH
BREEETERRBMZXZNEER-

HERY —T-tFFH

71
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the REMYBERGESMBRRERENS

Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) F(Z&)

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding o  EEBEAERSERTHNTE
the financial information of the entities or business ERNERTERBEENETRE N
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the BEGEEBERREXRER - BME
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for HE EEEEHAMR EEBEE#H
the direction, supervision and performance of the group TR AETERRELLEFE-

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among FMEEZREZEem(EheiE)ETE
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and RETHERERESFBRRETER  Z
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies ERIB AR MEET BT % BIA A S
in internal control that we identify during our audit. BRI BB KRG ©

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that MM mEZEZESEHERR  BHEME
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding RFEeEBEB AR EEE N WK
independence, and communicate with them all relationships BRI WA ERASTER B R
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on FrEEAEKIEMET KBRS E i
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. (ans@Em ) -

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, WHEEZE EEBEEMNEIET  RPIEEY
we determine those matters that were of most significance ARG EVBRREBIFTEFEEZNE
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 18- E MK EHEBETBIAE o K FIEX AT
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We REPMUMZEEIE  BRIEARICERTA
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or HARBBRZESEE EHBBEERLBR
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or [ HEEBEMERFINHRER EREEE
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a ERHBEERBBEEEMN AR BIF
matter should not be communicated in our report because PPYRETNEERE D BBZEE

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Other Matter Hih=1g

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the EEEHE_ET—XF+_HA=1+—81t
year ended 31 December 2016 were audited by the previous FEMNGEMEHRERTIA SEBRITZ
auditors of the Group who expressed an disclaimer of opinion HER —_E—+tF A+ N NBHFEZ £

on those statements on 28 July 2017. A ZERRBERER -
Confucius International CPA Limited AREBETTMEKMERAT
Certified Public Accountants HESEAT

Wong Ho Yuen, Gary BER

Practising Certificate Number: P01316 HEFEINFEPOI316

Hong Kong B

29 March 2018 —E-N\F=A=+NIAH
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEREBERHEMEZE KRS X

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

2017 2016
“B—tF —Z2NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

fff ARBT T ARETT

REVENUE Y 3= 6 125,501 215,831
Cost of sales SHERK R (96,994) (140,529)
GROSS PROFIT EF 28,507 75,302
Other net income and gains H A R U 55 6 1,691 3,506
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R DHEBEX (8,949) (8,591)
General and administrative expenses —MRRITH A (39,807) (51,916)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 17 (128,261) (105,401)
Impairment loss on intangible assets EEEREEE 17 (537,286) (325,616)
Impairment loss on non-current assets BEFEERDEE

held for sale B E1E 22 (23,244) -
Finance costs BB KA 7 (6,050) (7,933)
Fair value gain/(loss) on convertible BEAHEST ABm 2 i

notes and warrants at fair value IR K SRR R AR

through profit or loss AFEWE(1EX) 26 50,002 (41,617)
Gain on derecognition of warrants at BATERFFAEBR R

fair value through profit or loss R 2 R E R E 26 5,067 10,444
Fair value gain on provision for BATEFABR K

contingent consideration at fair value AREREZ

through profit or loss N ERE 27 219,888 141,915
LOSS BEFORE TAX MRBLATE ] 8 (438,442) (309,907)
Income tax credit/(expense) FriSfiEin, (&R) 11 3,072 (7,671)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AND TOTAL RRABEEAEMS

COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES FOR FABERER

THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 2 HAXERE

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 12 (435,370) (317,578)
LOSS PER SHARE BREE 14
— Basic (RMB) —EXR(ARE) (0.40) (0.29)
— Diluted (RMB) —#E(ARE) (0.40) (0.29)

Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 13 to the f% BEFIB BN R E I IS TR HIFE13 ©
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A BB R

As at 31 December 2017 R—-Z=

—tF¥+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
iz ARET T AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y ER G 15 41,416 82,010
Prepaid land lease payments B LS 16 26,954 32,640
Intangible assets mILEE 17 636,981 1,302,378
705,351 1,417,028
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 18 36,227 24,922
Trade and bills receivables FEWE SRR BN E & 19 29,806 76,132
Prepayments, deposits and other ANFIE  Re REMEKKIE
receivables 20 10,321 7,437
Pledged deposits BEREFER 21 2,127 4,283
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITHERR 21 5,888 4,789
84,369 117,563
Assets classified as held for sale SEAEEAEFENEE 22 26,000 -
110,369 117,563
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables BB ZERRENRE 23 48,001 53,889
Deposits received, other payables BliiES  HttERNFIER
and accruals EETER 24 39,925 33,518
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRIRITEE 25 117,000 124,000
Warrants SRR RE 26 = 5,067
Convertible notes GIE: &5 26 87,002 -
Income tax payable FEfS PS8 2,216 8,285
294,144 224,759
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEEE (183,775) (107,196)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAE
LIABILITIES 521,576 1,309,832
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B BRI R

As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F+_-_A=1+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F —E— R
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
iz ARET T AREFT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Convertible notes ARRER 26 57,820 194,824
Provision for contingent consideration SA(C{B & 27 47,272 268,565
Deferred tax liability EIEFIERE 28 3,071 3,071
108,163 466,460
NET ASSETS BEFE 413,413 843,372

EQUITY R

Share capital PR 29 71,629 71,629
Reserves @ 341,784 771,743
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 413,413 843,372
The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 184 FIB3ERIBAENMREMBERREEST SR

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 29 March 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

ZHENG Jingdong
MR
Director

BF

—E-NF=AC —HLEI Ttt/ﬁ&&%ﬂ

o WHATALTRERER

LEUNG Tsz Chung
T4
Director

EFE

B By 1

— R
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREaRB X

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BHE-—F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

Retained

Statutory  Exchange  Capital Share  profits/
Share Share Contributed  surplus fluctuation redemption ~options (accumulated Total Total
capital  premium  surplus fund  reserve  reserve  reserve losses) ~~ reserves equity

tERH ERNE EARE  BER REEA/
Bx BRBEE RAR®  MRe  BE 0 BR R (BB HREE  dRME
Noies  RMBOOD  RVBODD  RMBOOO  RWBOO  RVBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBODD  RMBOO
Kt ARETT ARMTT ARRTL AR®TR ARETR ARBTRL ARTR ARMTL ARRTL ARRTR

(note 29) (note 31(j) ~ (note 31(i)) ~ (note 31(ii)
(Wit2s) (W) (i) (asin)
At 1 January 2016 RZE-AE-F-H 70555 401,639 141376 9,338 155 54 10688 407766  1,058486 1,129,041
lssue of shares upon exercise of share AT ES
options Ediiq) 1014 146% - - - - ) R 72 R UK 1]
Loss and total comprehensive expense ~ EREERZERR
for the year o = = = = = = - (317578 (317578)  (317.578)
Fquity-setled share option arrangements )\ RIEEEHBERiE
i Elj - - - - - - nm - N W
Forfeture of share options e 0 - - - - - - (4 14 - -
Transfer to statutory surplus fund BETTTRRLES - - - (860) - - - 860 - -
At 31 December 2016 and Hog-5E
1 January 2017 TZR=t-BR
ZE-tE-5-f 71629 41635 141376 95,478 155 54 25,363 250 M3 33N
Loss and total comprehensive expense  EREER2ERR
for the year g = = = = = = - (35370)  (435370)  (435,370)
Equity-setted share aption amangements 4R EEEHETRiE
i 30 - - - - - -5 SR B 1]
Forfeiture of share options RlEhE £l - - - - - - 40 24 - -
At 31 December 2017 Hog-tf
tZR=1-H 71629 41635 141376 95,478 155 54 28284 (340358) 341784 413413
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tE S ANCS
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt aF AR® T ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEE
Loss before tax BREEATEE (438,442) (309,907)
Adjustments for: T FIEFE -
Interest income FEWA 6 (83) (1,072)
Interest expenses E=NE 7 6,050 7,933
Depreciation 3 15 6,467 7,922
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TET + 30 AH & 8
payments 16 845 845
Amortisation of intangible assets T B EE BB 17 128,261 105,401
Loss on disposals of items of HEMSE  HE K
property, plant and equipment X EIEE B8 162 6
Impairment loss on intangible BIZEERERBE
assets 17 537,286 325,616
Impairment loss on non-current REFERRBEERME
assets held for sale & 1B 22 23,244 -
Impairment loss on other H b e WS IBRE 1B
receivables - 165
(Reversal of)/impairment loss on FEU B 5 B8Rk CRlE 18
trade receivables #E),/BEEE 19 (737) 2,065
Write-down of inventories 7 &MU 98 2,003
Equity-settled share option AR S B BB AR 2
expenses 5,411 20,712
Fair value (gain)/loss on convertible RN FEFT AEZR 2
notes and warrants at fair value IR KRR IEE 2 A
through profit or loss A (M) 1B 26 (50,002) 41,617
Gain on derecognition of warrants BAFEFAEBZR ZRRKR
at fair value through profit or loss W8 2 % I HE R ER 26 (5,067) (10,444)
Fair value gain on provision for BATFERFABR IR
contingent consideration at fair REFEEZ A FERE
value through profit or loss 27 (219,888) (141,915)
Operating cash flow before changes LBECEHR KL
in working capital BeER= (6,395) 50,947
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEGEM), mb (11,403) 4,441
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills FEWE SR N eI Z %
receivables (1) 47,063 (39,163)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TE R e R E AR
deposits and other receivables IR, () 2,831 (151)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills FERE ZER N ENEE
payables CRLA),/#hn (5,888) 15,210
Increase in deposits received, other BEiirSE - AR RIE R
payables and accruals i =asb il 5,002 1,874
Cash generated from operations Raemsise 31,210 33,158
Interest received EUHFIE 83 1,072
Enterprise income taxes PEREH (2,997) (1,026)
Net cash flows generated from RETHMEBREREFHE
operating activities 28,296 33,204
HeRy —2—t558 [/




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BHE-—F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—t& —T—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt aF AR¥T T ARBT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchases of items of property, plant BEME WENMZRHEEE
and equipment 15 (10,438) (2,597)
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEYE WERFZHEEER
property, plant and equipment MEfiRe (5.800) -
Purchases and addition of intangible BT N m EE
assets 17 (150) (152,378)
Payment of contingent consideration WERE & ET M AEAA
for acquisition of intangible assets RE - (659,410)
Proceeds from disposals of items of HEYE  ME&XEEE
property, plant and equipment FRiS5K18 85 -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BE TR (3 h0)
deposits 2,156 (1,560)
Net cash flows used in investing REZBFIAREREFH
activities (14,147) (815,945)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES i E
New shares issued upon exercise of RITE B AR 1T AR
share options = 11,197
Repayments of bank loans ERBITERK 25 (7,000) (5,570)
Interest paid 2FE (6,050) (7,933)
Net cash flows used in financing RMETBTARSREFH
activities (13,050) (2,306)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRBESEEYEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R ) F8 1,099 (785,047)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUHeRBEEEED
beginning of year 4,789 789,836
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRAERREEEY
END OF YEAR 5,888 4,789
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERARECEZBEYERDMN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHR 5,888 4,789
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEBMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Baofeng Modern International Holdings Company
Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office
address and principal place of business of the Company
as disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of
the annual report. The shares of the Company were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 28 January 2011 (the
“Listing Date”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) during the year.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
immediate holding company and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Best Mark International
Limited (“Best Mark"”), which was incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). Its ultimate controlling party
is Mr. Sze Ching Bor.
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30

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

The Group has applied new and revised IFRSs, which
include IFRS(s), International Accounting Standards
("IASs") and Interpretations, issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") for the first time in
the current year:

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets For Unrealised Losses

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

The application of the new and revised IFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

IFRS 17

[FRIC* 22

IFRIC 23

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 15

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 40

Amendments to IFRSs

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'
Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions'

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Clarifications to IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'’

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures?

As part of Annual
Improvements to IFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle!

Transfers of Investment
Property!

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

* IFRIC represents the International Financial
Reporting Standards Interpretation Committee

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018.

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 has introduced new requirements for a)
classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, b) impairment of financial assets and
) general hedge accounting.

Specifically, with regard to the classification and
measurement of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires all
recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
IFRS 9 to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of each of the subsequent
accounting periods. Debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Further, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss and that cumulative
fair value changes will not be reclassified to profit or loss
upon derecognition of the investment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), IFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in
the fair value of a financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of such changes in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as FVTPL is presented in profit or loss.

With regard to impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9
has adopted an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model required under IAS 39.
In general, the expected credit loss model requires an
entity to assess the change in credit risk of the financial
asset since initial recognition at each reporting date and
to recognise the expected credit loss depending on the
degree of the change in credit risk.

With regard to the general hedge accounting
requirements, IFRS 9 retains the three types of hedge
accounting mechanisms currently available in IAS 39.
Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to
the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible for
hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test
has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of
an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the
directors of the Company anticipate the following
potential impact on initial application of IFRS 9:

Classification and measurement

Except for financial assets which are subject to expected
credit loss model under IFRS 9, all other financial assets
and financial liabilities will continue to be measured on
the same bases as are currently measured under IAS 39.

The Group currently does not have any debt instruments
and equity securities and therefore this new requirement
with respect to investments in debt instruments and
equity securities may not have any impact on the Group
on adoption of IFRS 9.

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the expected credit loss model of IFRS
9 will result in earlier provision of credit losses which
are not yet incurred in relation to the Group's financial
assets measured at amortised costs and other items that
subject to the impairment provisions upon application
of IFRS 9 by the Group. The Group has assessed how
its impairment provisions would be affected by the
new model. So far it has concluded that there would
be no material impact for the application of the new
impairment requirements.

Hedge accounting

IFRS 9 does not fundamentally change the requirements
relating to measuring and recognising ineffectiveness
under IAS 39. However, greater flexibility has been
introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting. The Group did not have any such hedging
instruments as at 31 December 2017 and thus the
Group’s consolidated financial statements will not be
impacted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the Clarifications to IFRS 15

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18
Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, IFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of IFRS 15 in the future will have a significant
impact on the Group'’s consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 will supersede the current lease guidance
including IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

With regard to lessee accounting, the distinction of
operating leases and finance leases, as required by
IAS 17, has been replaced by a model which requires
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability to
be recognised for all leases by lessees except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
Specifically, the right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any re-measurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments.

Furthermore, the classification of cash flows will also be
affected as operating lease payments under IAS 17 are
presented as operating cash flows; whereas, under the
IFRS 16 model, the lease payments will be split into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented
as financing and operating cash flows respectively.

With regard to lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, IFRS 16 requires extensive disclosures in the
financial statements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of IFRS 16 in the future will have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

The amendments clarify the following:

o In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled share-
based payment, the accounting for the effects of
vesting and non-vesting conditions should follow
the same approach as for equity-settled share-based
payments.

o Where tax law or regulation requires an entity to
withhold a specified number of equity instruments
equal to the monetary value of the employee’s tax
obligation to meet the employee’s tax liability which
is then remitted to the tax authority, i.e. the share-
based payment arrangement has a ‘net settlement
feature’, such an arrangement should be classified
as equity-settled in its entirety, provided that the
share-based payment would have been classified as
equity-settled had it not included the net settlement
feature.

o A modification of a share-based payment that
changes the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled should be accounted for as follows:
the original liability is derecognised. The equity-
settled share-based payment is recognised at
the modification date fair value of the equity
instrument granted to the extent that services have
been rendered up to the modification date. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the
liability at the modification date and the amount
recognised in equity should be recognised in profit
or loss immediately.

The Group does not have any cash-settled share-
based payment arrangements or any withholding tax
arrangements with tax authorities in relation to share-
based payments and hence the directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of the amendments
in the future will have a significant impact on the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

This Interpretation addresses how to determine the date
of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to be used on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The Interpretation
concludes that the date of the transaction for the
abovementioned purpose is the date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of
advance consideration.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the Interpretation will have a material
impact on the Group'’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with
situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses
resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does
not contain a business in a transaction with an associate
or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and
losses resulting from the re-measurement of investments
retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method) to fair value are recognised in the
former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint
venture.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the Interpretation will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all the applicable individual
IFRSs with collective term includes all applicable individual
IFRSs, IASs and Interpretations issued by the IASB. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
convertible notes, warrants and provision for contingent
consideration which are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policy set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS
36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level T  inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

Level 2

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

Going concern

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB183,775,000 The Group incurred a loss for the
year of RMB435,370,000. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and therefore, the Group may not be
able to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concern (continued)

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will
be able to finance its future working capital and finance
requirements. Certain measures have been taken to
manage its liquidity needs and to improve its financial
position which include, but are not limited to, the
following:

1.

The Group will negotiate with the banks in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") for the renewal
of the Group’s PRC bank borrowings when they
fall due to secure necessary facilities to meet the
Group’s working capital and financial requirements
in the near future. The directors of the Company
have evaluated all the relevant facts available to
them and are of the opinion that the Group has a
good track record or relationship with the banks
which will enhance the Group’s ability to renew the
Group’s PRC bank borrowings upon expiry; and

Convertible notes with principal amounts of
HK$110,880,000 and HK$73,920,000 respectively
were issued to Bluestone Technologies (Cayman)
Limited ("Bluestone") and will be matured on 16
December 2018 and 2 February 2019 (the "Maturity
Dates") respectively. Pursuant to the memorandum
signed by Bluestone on 28 March 2018, Bluestone
is willing to extend the date of repayment for 1 year
from the Maturity Dates in circumstances that i) the
convertible notes are not converted into conversion
shares before the Maturity Dates; ii) the conversion
price per conversion share is higher than the share
price of the Company on the Maturity Dates; and
iii) Bluestone selects the option to request the
Company to repay the principal amount of such
convertible notes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Going concern (continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
cash flow projections prepared by management. The cash
flow projections cover a period of not less than fifteen
months from the date of the consolidated statement
of financial position. The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that, taking into account the above-
mentioned plans and measures, the Group would have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within the next fifteen months from the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 on a
going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
to write down the value of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

—  is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement
of financial position of the Company at cost less any
identified impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company as the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHEZE—FT—+tF+_-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-makers (“CODM"). The CODM, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the executive directors that make strategic
decisions.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes. Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have
passed, at which time all the following conditions are
satisfied:

— the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

—  the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

—  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting
policy for leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the year, in which case, the exchange rate prevailing at the
dates of the transaction are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange fluctuation reserve.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2017

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHEZE—FT—+tF+_-_A=+—HIFE

TESHEE®E)

BEEKA

FRENRE 2RI LEEARTE—BE
RET A EREREREHIFHENE
E)EEHEBNIEERAGTAZFE
ENRARN BERSFEEENLZE
HEBREAGHHEERL-

EEMEERAREERENER

&
#ﬁ”m%ﬁlﬁﬁm%%%%%
AZE BN AL EE LA INE B (HNEE ) 4
EMX%&@%*HWL%EX%
RERPR - UHINBFEHEK
Eﬁéhﬁamiiéﬁﬁﬁoﬁﬁ
FEAINETIBRMIEERIBR IR
FEETEANBREXRSHNRE -
E%%Wﬁﬁ$ﬁ%%%§%ﬁﬁﬂ
HBHIRE

BE¥IEEMNEN EZBERELBRBERIE
T NFER o

\

REJNFEMBRRM S AEEE
SN EERBETIRANE 2
HANEREXBRESAEBNZ
SEE(BARE) BRIEFARER LR
KIERE EZBR T BIBRRZ
FRMRITERBRE  WARMX
HBARFRATHERGE -FIELE
MEN ZR(NE)REME2EEAR
ERL N DT E L RBREERT
ESE



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEBMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are recognised as an
expense as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in PRC are required to participate in central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the benefit obligations of all
existing and retired employees under these plans.
Contributions to these plans by the Group are expensed
as incurred. The Group has no further obligations for
benefits for their qualified employees under these plans.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax. The tax currently
payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease.

Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid land lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, as the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development
for production or for administrative purposes, the
amortisation of prepaid land lease payments provided
during the construction period is included as part of
costs of buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings commences
when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management).

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when
their carrying amounts are to be recovered principally
through sale transactions and sales are considered highly
probable. It is stated at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on a systematic
basis with reference to projected sales volume, upon
future sales volume of related products.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in
the period when the asset is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating unit, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks or
other financial institutions and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amount
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of damages in
value, and having been within three months of maturing
of acquisition.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and receivables.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
bills receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, pledged deposits and
cash and bank balances are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

—  disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of three months, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into either
financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial liabilities.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2017

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BHE-—F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

TESHEE®E)

$RMIAE

SHEE (&)

S REEREEE (E)
MIERATNERZCREEMS @ AE
EEeEAEERTERZBUS
B ERITMIS O REIE 2 BEr R
REECREZRBZEZRE =254
REEBEE TSN EZEEEE -

ITEEREEMS  £REEMNK
HEERRBEBERY  HEREKE
ZARFRER SN - ELBR T B T35 3B (£ A
wEREMRD - BEKE W Rm(EE
BN IEE TR - i B E 2 RN
8RN - R A R B
HgWEa M TR ARSA -

RIRBHA AT ENEREEMS
R EREE REBRE KD
T 52 R > 7] 5 B it £ e R Rl (LS 1R 1R
HAEMEMAR - RISTATERRREIE
BiEAERBRaNER EZEERNE
ElR(E A A REE N SBBEL &
FERREMER T A MR -

THEERRATA
SEERETNESREATAEGR
R e R AT ke B ER
BATANEZSBRATREBENK
o

AEENEBMA B BAREQTFER
ABENEHMBEEtEREE-



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEBMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

— it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

—  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

—  the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 37.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and bills
payables, deposit received, other payables and
accruals and interesting-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than those financial liabilities classified as at
FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in net
gains or losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes entitle the note holder to convert the
note into equity instruments, other than into a fixed
number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion
price, are regarded as combined instruments consist of a
liability and a derivative component.

On initial recognition, the convertible notes with the
derivative component as a whole are designated as
financial liabilities at FVTPL. The entire convertible notes
are initially recognised at fair value on the date of
issue and are subsequently measured at fair value until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. Changes in the
fair value of the entire convertible notes are recognised
in the profit or loss as they arise. Interest on convertible
notes designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL is included
in the fair value gain or loss for that period. Upon
conversion of the convertible notes, the fair value of the
convertible notes converted is reclassified to equity.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the convertible notes designated as financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Warrants

Warrants which meet the definition of a derivative are
initially recognised at fair value at initial recognition and
are subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in the
fair value of warrants are recognised in the profit or loss
when they arise.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in share options reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of share options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained profits/
(accumulated losses).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(@) has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(@) The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

() Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.
(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties (continued)
(i) (continued)

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(f)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

(g) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(h) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the group or to the
group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
that are not readily apparent for other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates
cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If
these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold
separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.

Certain properties of the Group comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals and another portion that is held
for use in the supply of goods and for administrative
purposes. As the portion that is held to earn rentals
is small and could not be sold separately and the
portion that is held for use in supply of goods and for
administrative purposes is significant, the properties are
not classified as investment properties.

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions
of dividends

The Group's determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
a subsidiary in the PRC according to the relevant tax
jurisdiction is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividend, where the Group considered
that if it is probable that the profits of the subsidiary in
the PRC will not be distributed in the foreseeable future,
then no withholding taxes should be provided.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Building

Despite the Group has paid the full purchase
consideration as detailed in note 15, certain of the
Group's rights to use of the building and land were
not granted formal titles from the relevant government
authorities. The directors of the Company are of the
opinions that the risks and rewards of using these assets
have been transferred to the Group and the absence of
formal titles to these buildings and land use rights do not
impair the value of the relevant properties to the Group.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to the ones previously estimated,
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment (continued)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Property, plant and equipment
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs to sell is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment was approximately RMB41,416,000
(2016: RMB82,010,000).

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible asset is tested for impairment if there is
any indication that the carrying value of these assets
may not be recoverable and the assets are subject
to impairment loss. The recoverable amount is the
value-in-use. The value-in-use calculation requires
the directors of the Company to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the relevant cash
generating unit and a suitable discount rate is used
in order to calculate the present value. As at 31
December 2017, the carrying amount of the Group's
intangible asset was approximately RMB636,981,000
(2016: RMB1,302,378,000), net of impairment loss of
approximately RMB537,286,000 (2016: RMB325,616,00).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the
current market conditions and the historical experience
of selling merchandise of a similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste or competitor actions. The Group reassesses these
estimates at the end of the reporting period. As at 31
December 2017, the carrying amount of inventories was
approximately RMB36,227,000 (2016: RMB24,922,000),
net of allowance for write-down inventories of
approximately RMB4,907,000 (2016: RMB4,809,000).

Impairment allowances for trade and other
receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for
trade and other receivables by assessing the recoverability
based on credit history and prevailing market conditions.
This requires the use of estimates and judgements.
Allowances are applied to trade and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables and thus the impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate is changed. The Group
reassesses the impairment allowances at the end of the
reporting period.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was approximately RMB28,535,000 (2016:
RMB76,132,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately RMB2,689,000 (2016: RMB3,426,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of
other receivables were approximately RMB1,814,000
with no impairment loss on other receivables (2016:
carrying amount of other receivables were approximately
RMB4,038,000, net of impairment loss on other
receivables of approximately RMB165,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of convertible notes

As described in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, the convertible notes are designated
as financial liabilities at FVTPL The Group engaged
independent firms of professionally qualified valuers to
assist in determining the fair value of convertible notes.
The fair value of the convertible notes is determined
using the binomial model. The significant inputs into the
model included risk-free interest rate, conversion price/
exercise price, stock price, expected volatility, expected
life and expected dividend yield. When the actual results
of the inputs differ from management’s estimate, it will
have an impact on the fair value gain or loss and the fair
value of the convertible notes.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs
in note 3. Determining the amounts to be capitalised
requires management to make assumptions regarding
the expected future cash generation of the assets,
discount rates to be applied and the expected period
of benefits. At 31 December 2017, the best estimate of
the carrying amount of deferred development costs was
RMB32,935,000 (2016: RMB92,378,000). Further details
are included in note 17.

Provision for contingent considerations of
acquisitions

Acquisition of intangible assets has involved post-
acquisition performance-based contingent considerations.
The Group recognise the fair value of those contingent
considerations for acquisitions, as of their respective
acquisition dates as part of the consideration transferred
in exchange for the acquired intangible assets. These
fair value measurements require, among other things,
significant estimation of post-acquisition performance of
the acquired intangible assets and significant judgement
on time value of money. Contingent considerations shall
be remeasured at their fair value resulting from events
or factors emerging after the acquisition date, with any
resulting gain or loss recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss account.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for contingent considerations of
acquisitions (continued)

The contingent consideration reflects a specified multiple
of the post-acquisition profitability of the acquired
intangible assets. Consequently, the actual additional
consideration payable will vary according to the future
performance generated from the intangible assets, and
the liabilities provided reflect estimates of such future
performances.

Due to the variety of bases of determination, it is not
practicable to provide any meaningful sensitivity in
relation to the critical assumptions concerning future
profitability of the acquired intangible assets and the
potential impact on the gain or loss on remeasurement of
contingent consideration payables.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the directors of the Company,
being the CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance, focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating
segments are as follows:

(@) the Boree branded products segment manufactures
and sells Boree branded slippers, sandals and casual
footwear (“Boree Products”);

(b) the Graphene-based products segment applied
the technology know-how by applying graphene
in the production of graphene-based ethylene-
vinyl acetate (“EVA") foam material and slippers
with sterilizing, good elasticity and tear resistant
functions (”Graphene-based Products”); and

(c) the Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM")
segment produces slippers for branding and resale
by others.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

CODM monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment result, which is a measure of adjusted result
before tax.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. The segment profit or loss represents the profit
earned by or loss from each segment without allocation
of interest income, other unallocated net income and
gains, amortisation of intangible assets, impairment loss
on intangible assets and non-current assets held for sale,
gain on derecognition of warrants at FVTPL, fair value
change on convertible notes, warrants and provision for
contingent consideration at FVTPL, finance costs as well
as corporate and other unallocated expenses.

Segment assets exclude property, plant and equipment,
prepaid land lease payments, intangible assets, raw
materials, work in progress, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, pledged deposits, cash and bank
balances and assets classified as held for sale as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude trade and bills payables,
certain other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
bank borrowings, convertible notes, warrants, income tax
payable, deferred tax liability and provision for contingent
consideration as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.
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L HEBE KA DME??&EE?J’"@E&
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BIEE D B A5 N R E LR E
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WA R W s8R BT B E i

BYEEMRBEGESIFRBEERME
BE - R ERARZZBIRER

Z%iﬁﬁﬁ?\i%¥ BRFEARS
Z AR - BEE M ARE

Bz nFEZ @J BERA Kb
EREMARD R

HRYE BEEEE AN HHE
& BEE RV EfE EAN
RE e REMEYRE EEH
R R RBITEHRNOBATA
FEMNEENRREBEREENE
B AT ADBEE -

HRENE SRR ENRE 50
Hib 5 IE&JEJ;%??H AHEERTT
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. DXERE)
Segment revenues and results DEBUL R I A
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and PAT BIgn] 2 N &S5 af &l n K&
results by reportable and operating segment. E R RS ST o
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZE—+tF+-A=1t—HLEE
Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
BEAR A&
Em Em mE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR¥TR AR®TR AR%®TxR
Segment revenue i L6
Sales to external customers MINRE P HE 3,517 2,130 119,854 125,501
Segment results Pk (1,431) (14) 21,003 19,558
Reconciliation: #Hk -
Interest income FMEWA 83
Other unallocated net income  E k7 ELU A K Wi zs
and gains R 1,608
Corporate and other TEREMKRDEFAS
unallocated expenses (39,807)
Amortisation of intangible B EESHE
assets (128,261)
Impairment loss on intangible & i/ & & R {E 518
assets (537,286)
Impairment loss on non- BREREHRRBEEME
current assets held for sale E B (23,244)
Fair value gain on convertible ?EQQZ@EU\T§¥ ;
notes and warrants at e ES YT e £
FVTPL Z AT EREE 50,002
Gain on derecognition of BATEGFABR CRR
warrants at FVTPL TEFE 7 IR | EREA U EE 5,067
Fair value gain on BATEGFABS 2SR
provision for contingent REBE 22 TR
consideration at FVTPL 219,888
Finance costs & B AN (6,050)
Loss before tax B RIEE (438,442)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oZERE)
Segment revenues and results (continued) DEBR B R E A (E)
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-ZE—AE+=-A=1t—HLFE
Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
EARE A=
Em = g
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTRT ARETT
Segment revenue 2 Uk =
Sales to external customers RIINRZPHE 2,698 43,171 169,962 215,831
Segment results Pl E 3 (3,948) 27,133 43,526 66,711
Reconciliation: #Hx
Interest income NEEY N 1,072
Other unallocated net income  Effl 2k 5 Bl A K Ui zs
and gains FH 2,434
Corporate and other TEREMRIERX
unallocated expenses (51,916)
Amortisation of intangible BEREESE
assets (105,401)
Impairment loss on intangible % & /= i (8 &5 18
assets (325,616)
Fair value loss on convertible IR AF(ETAEBRZ
notes and warrants at AR EE R RREE
FVTPL /NS IEE=PS (41,617)
Gain on derecognition of BAFEFABEZRR
warrants at FVTPL R 2 R R = 10,444
Fair value gain on BATEGFABR ZHEA
provision for contingent REBHE 2 A TERS
consideration at FVTPL 141,915
Finance costs BEKA (7,933)
Loss before tax BT Es 18 (309,907)
BEEY —T—tEERHR
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 22p&ERE)
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AT BIER] 25 R &L DI85 ARE
liabilities by reportable and operating segment: BERNEENBED
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE—Z—tH&Et+=-A=1t—HILFE
Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
EON;: 2%
Em Em M

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR AR¥T:R

Segment assets PHEE 1,885 4,457 33,574 39,916
Reconciliation: HER -
Corporate and other TEREMARSEEE

unallocated assets 749,804
Assets classified as held NHEAERBEGENEE

for sale 26,000
Total assets BERT 815,720
Segment liabilities PHEE 300 - - 300
Reconciliation: HER -
Corporate and other TtERAEMRSEEE

unallocated liabilities 402,007
Total liabilities BERTE 402,307
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Segment assets and liabilities (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

7 EE R ()
APEERAKA)
BE-F-AF+-A=t—ALFE

Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
EAE ey
= E FEEE]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT AREBTT ARETRT AREFTIT
Segment assets PEEE 1,497 33,011 48,340 82,848
Reconciliation: #E
Corporate and other TEREMKIEEE
unallocated assets 1,451,743
Total assets BERT 1,534,591
Segment liabilities PHEE 300 - - 300
Reconciliation: HE
Corporate and other TrEREMRIEAR
unallocated liabilities 690,919
Total liabilities BfEAR 691,219

HERY —T-tFFH

123




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BHE-—F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oZERE)
Other segment information Hith o IHER
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-—FT—t&+-A=1+—HIFE
Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
BEAR AERK
Em Em g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETt AR®BTnR AR¥Tr AR%®TxR
Included in arriving at EEA R, (BHE)E
segment profit/(loss) are: B35t A :
(Reversal of)/impairment loss  [EUE 587 CREERE
on trade receivables %[,/ REEE 56 - (793) (737)
Write-down of inventories 17 & #fi5 98 - - 98
(639)
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE—S—NE+-—A=+—HIEE
Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
EUN;: yar--Y
Em Em B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT
Included in arriving at EEamER,
segment profit/(loss) are:  (FR)KEFTA :
Impairment loss on trade B E 58
receivables VEREN SR 109 = 1,956 2,065
Write-down of inventories FE MO 2,003 = = 2,003
4,068
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oZERE)
Geographical information hEE R

(a) Revenue from external customers (a) REIIREFH Kz
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
PRC (principal place of operations) R (EELEME) 5,664 49,369
United States of America (“US") EHER & RE (6 ) 109,394 162,750
South America EE) 551 402
Europe B 2,058 335
South East Asia Rae 2,353 471
Other countries H B 5,481 2,504
125,501 215,831

AEWSHEEREREPUES

The revenue information above is based on the

locations of the customers. 5o
(b) Non-current assets (b) ETEEE
2017 2016
- —ERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT
PRC (principal place of operations) RE(FELEE) 705,345 1,417,018

A EFRBEEERIENEE

ESD -

The non-current assets information above is based
on the locations of the assets.

FEFEFHNESR
REBFE KEFF ZWBEAE
EAEHERE10% A EEWT :

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are

as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Customer A ZEA 75,643 69,330
Customer B* = FER* 7,401 22,359
Customer C* ZEC* 736 32,717
Customer D* ZED* 10,168 51,185
s Revenue from Customers B, C and D contributed less than * KERFB - CRDZ W EARE

10% of the total sales of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2017.

BEHE—T—tF+_A="1—
BIEFREAEHFHERIN10% -

B By 1

—B-LEER
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oEERE)
Information about major customers (continued) FEEFNER(E)
Except Customer C in the Boree Products and Graphene- KREFCKREEABERNAAEGE
based Products segments, the Group’s other major mA N AEBHMFERFKE
customers are in the OEM segment. OEM S &f
6. REVENUE, OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS 6. W% - WA Rz F5E
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents WM AR EBRE 25 HERE
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for NMBREENESTHEENEEE R
returns and trade discounts. BEEEREE o
An analysis of revenue, other net income and gains is as Was ~ Efb U A N Uk 25 B8 ) 0 AT A
follows: ™
2017 2016
—B-tF —TRF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T ARETT
Revenue g
Manufacture and sale of goods HEENMHEE M 125,501 215,831
Other net income and gains H i A R U2 5 58
Interest income A B YA 83 1,072
Sales of scrap material SHERER 300 646
Sales of semi-products SHE K o 54 -
Sales of gas emission quota SHERE R B R 412 -
Rental income HEUWA 382 515
Subsidy income* GE N 450 190
Exchange gain E H UG 25 = 917
Others Hith 10 166
1,691 3,506
* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies * 4 A B8 2% S5 a5 Bh B R E R IR
relating to these subsidies. HHAIEMR,
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. RERA
2017 2016
—E—+F —TE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®EF T
Interest on bank loans repayable within ~ BRAFERNEENRITER
five years & 6,050 7,933
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LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

8. BRBLAIEIR

AEBORBABEE NG (GTA)

(crediting) the following items: LATIER :
2017 2016
—E—t& —TE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
Cost of inventories sold* BEEFERA* 96,896 138,526
Depreciation* HrEE* 6,467 7,922
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE S £ 37 & 8
payments 845 845
Amortisation of intangible assets EmEEEEE 128,261 105,401
Minimum lease payments under RAR T 3 KB F R LA
operating leases in respect of land and &K e3>
buildings* 867 475
Employee benefit expenses (including BEERMAX(BREES
directors’ remuneration - note 9)*: B<e—FT5E9) * :
Wages and salaries TENES 42,578 47,844
Equity-settled share option expenses VAR #E 45 Y B IR i I 2 5,411 20,712
Staff welfares EEEF 934 275
Contributions to retirement benefits BRIREFIFTEIERR
schemes 3,126 1,478
52,049 70,309
Auditors’ remuneration: ZER S
Audit service EiER 920 1,103
Non-audit service T ER 251 -
1,171 1,103
Impairment loss on intangible assets EE EREEIE 537,286 325,616
Impairment loss on non-current assets FAFSIERDEERE
held for sale E518 23,244 -
Impairment loss on other receivables H th & WO IERVB S 1B - 165
(Reversal of)/impairment loss on trade FEUE 5 BR X O (B 5 18 7
receivables |),/ BiE k8 (737) 2,065
Write-down of inventories FEMR 98 2,003
Loss on disposals of items of property, HEYE - WENREEB
plant and equipment E518 162 6
Exchange loss/(gain), net BE H K (Was ) F5E 877 (917)
Research and development costs** 2L i AN * * 6,358 5,436
BEEY —T—tEERHR
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8. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 8. #ﬁau@ﬂa{ﬁ

& The cost of inventories sold for the year ended 31 Bz —_T—+F+-_A=+—H1t
December 2017 includes approximately RMB28,677,000 FEEEFRERABEAOAARE
(2016: RMB37,202,000) relating to direct staff costs, 28,677,0000C (ZZE—7RF: ARKE
depreciation of manufacturing facilities and operating 37,202,00070) M EHEEE KA« &£
lease payments in respect of land and buildings, which EXRETENUR TR EFLEEHE
are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed NN ZEEE RE A EXFT
above for each of these types of expenses. HESEAT A AEARE-

**  The research and development costs are included **  EKADEAZEERILEME
in “General and administrative expenses” in the BWEREO [ ERITEHAS] -
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. EERFETHAENE

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the 7FETJ€ HA ETRA - BAERAED &

years, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules, RE(BBEEENRER)RO(E

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Companies 622GE )MBEBENFEEEREET

(Disclosure of information about benefits of directors) BAEMEAT

Regulations (Cap. 622G), are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
Fees (note a) & (note b) we (Mata) % (Kathb) 554 650
Other emoluments: Eiile :
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in — & R NEY
kind (note c) BA(Ffatc) 1,315 1,294
— Contributions to retirement benefits — RN R 2K
schemes (note c) (KtaEc) 32 30
— Equity-settled share option expenses — AR E f R A
REFRX 797 2,854
2,698 4,828

130

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2017




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEBMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION (continued)

Notes

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid or payable to independent non-executive

9. EERFEITBAEME &)
i3
(@) BIKBITES

AEEENAENBILIERNTES

directors during the current year are as follows: R EB AT
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT
Ms. An Na i+ 175 172
Professor Zhao Jinbao < R 103 103
Mr. Chen Shaohua BRAEE A4 173 172
451 447

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2016: Nil).

(b) Non-executive director

The fees paid or payable to non-executive director during

FA A EENBILIERITESRH
HiMe (ZF—RF:E)-

(b) FBTES

AEERNREMNFERITEFTNE

the current year are as follows: ST
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARET T
Mr. Sze Ching Bor (resigned on 7 January /5K E4A (R=ZZE—/RF
2016) — At HEE) - 3
Mr. Chan Chak Chak Daniel (resigned on RERLEE (RZE—RF
12 December 2016) +=A+=BEF) = 98
Ms. Lin Weihuan (appointed on 7 January  #MEE L+ (R —/RF
2016) —AtBEZEE) 103 102
103 203

There were no other emoluments payable to the non-

executive director during the year (2016: Nil).

FRAYERNIFRTESHHMHS (=
T—NFE)e

HERY —T-tFFH
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. EERFETHAEMEHE)
REMUNERATION (continued)
Notes (continued) Btat (&)
() Executive directors and chief executive officer () BTEERTHAR
Salaries, Contributions
allowances  Equity-settled  to retirement
and benefits share option benefits
Fees in kind expenses schemes Total
§& 2HE  URELEY BAEA
ok ENEN BRERX BE L ]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT T AR® TR ARBT T AR®T T ARBT T

Year ended 31 December 2017 BZ-E-t£1Z7

St-HLEEE

Mr. Zheng Jingdong" H2REE - 564 797 16 1,377
Mr. Leung Tsz Chung DML - 751 - 16 767
- 1315 197 32 2,144

Salaries, Contributions

allowances Equity-settled to retirement

and benefits share option benefits
Fees in kind eXpenses schemes Total

G 2MRk  MREEEY IR
e ENER BRERX AR 8%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT AR¥TT ARBTT ARBTT

Year ended 31 December 2016 BZ-3-5751ZA

Zt-BLEE
Mr. Zheng Jingdong! PRRAE - 557 1,537 15 2,109
Mr. Leung Tsz Chung Rk - 737 1317 15 2,069
- 1,294 2,854 30 4178
i Mr. Zheng lJingdong has been appointed as the chief 1 HEREEN_E—=F1A
executive officer of the Company on 10 May 2013 and +HEZEAEKRRNT{THA
his emoluments disclosed above include those for services H -HEEaMesEEESIT
rendered by him as the chief executive officer. AR FTIRERS 2 & -
There was no arrangement under which a director and ERHEIIESE RITHRAE K
chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive any EXRIENEEAME2TH (=
remuneration during the year (2016: Nil). T—NEE)o
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

10.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (2016: two) directors and the chief executive officer,
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9(c)
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining three (2016: three) highest paid employee who
is neither a director nor chief executive officer of the

Company are as follow:

hEmEHER

FRN AERRSHFEETEME(ZE
—NF MB)REFRITHAER K
FZHM S FBEHEN LX) - AL
AIEBR=FR(ZT—RF: =ZR)FE
ERFTBRAEN RS HEENASE
EEOMESFBWT

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET AREFT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ &% « JEBL R EWEAF 1,227 320
Contributions to retirement benefits BRIREFIETEI R

scheme 21 =

Equity-settled share option expenses AR E S E BB RRE R 646 4,184

1,894 4,504

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
officer, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell

within the following bands:

MENFIATHREZIFES RIFTH
mENRSEHEE AR

Number of employees

EEZR
2017 2016
—E-+tF —ZT—RK
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 AR #500,0017C

Z= AR #1,000,0007T 3 -

RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AE#1,000,0017C
= AR #1,500,0007T = 2

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,500,0017C
= AR #2,000,0007C = 1
3 3
BigEY —B—LEER
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11. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) 1. SR (BRA)

2017 2016
—E—+F ZTE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREF T
Current — PRC Enterprise Income Tax  ElHi — hE %858
Charge for the year FREF 2,209 7,569
(Over)/under-provisions in prior years BAEEEGBERE)
BETE (5,281) 102
Total tax (credit)/expense for the year FERNFHIEGEN) & REE (3,072) 7,671

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been provided
as the Group’s tax losses brought forward from prior
years exceeded the assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong for the year (2016: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable
in the PRC have been calculated at the prevailing rates,
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices
in respect thereof.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for 2016.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, one of the
PRC subsidiaries has been granted Advanced and New
Technology Enterprise status which entitles the subsidiary
to a reduced income tax rate at 15% for 2017.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the “loss
before tax” per consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as below:

HRASEBEBEFEEE ZHIERE
BEBFAETEELNERTE
F o RY BB ANEHBERB(=F
—NEF ). R BIA) B RR T A B IR
DREAENRITEN 2B RER
HERRRE -

BIEREPEMEITE(REMSEH
E D REFEASFEBERESN  —F
—NEHBEMB AR EE25% °
BHE-ZT—+t&F+-_HA=1T—HLHF
B -HEbh—RHtEfBAREERS
FRMEEER BAER-_ZT—+
FZH15%NEIRATERTER o

FRAR A RS A B REME
T U2 55 2 710 [T A A L) 10
m

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETTT AREETIT
Loss before tax BrEi R E R (438,442) (309,907)
Tax at the applicable tax rates RBERATEGTENNIE (75,336) (48,546)
Income not subject to tax BAGRA (46,612) (19,414)
Expenses not deductible for tax TAIHORA A 52 124,157 75,615
(Over)/under-provisions in prior years BEFEE(GBERE)

BB T (5,281) 102

Tax effect of tax loss utilised ESRARIEEENH ST E - (86)
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year  FREF () EH (3,072) 7,671
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1. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (continued)

Pursuant to the income tax law of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the
PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate for the withholding
tax is 5% (2016: 5%). In estimating the withholding
taxes on dividends expected to be distributed by
those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors
of the Company have made assessment based on the
factors which included dividend policy and the level of
capital and working capital required for the Group’s
operations in the foreseeable future. No deferred tax
liability has been provided for the remaining of such
profits of approximately RMB507,170,000 (2016:
RMB547,564,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2017, there were no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities (2016: Nil) for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of the Company's subsidiaries
expected to be distributed, after considering the
abovementioned factors, in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

At 31 December 2017, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$1,486,000 (2016: HK$1,491,000) equivalent
to RMB1,288,000 (2016: RMB1,275,000) available for
offseting against future profits, no deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

mEBMBERRWE

—F—tFFA=t—HUFE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BHE-—F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

12.

13.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017
includes a loss of approximately RMB336,521,000 (2016:
RMB345,844,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 39(i)).

The loss of RMB336,521,000 (2016: RMB345,844,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 included a
management fee of RMB140,000 (2016: RMB411,000) to
a subsidiary of the Company.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was proposed for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 and since the end of the
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
consolidated loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately RMB435,370,000 (2016:
RMB317,578,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,084,059,608 (2016: 1,080,827,914)
in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate the basic loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2017 included the 1,084,059,608 ordinary
shares in issue as at 1 January 2017 and 31 December
2017.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate the basic loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2016 included the 1,067,579,608 ordinary
shares in issue as at 1 January 2016, and 16,200,000
ordinary shares and 280,000 ordinary shares issued on 9
March 2016 and 17 October 2016 respectively in respect
of exercise of share options.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of
the Company’s share options and convertible notes as the
exercise of the Company’s share options and convertible
notes would result in a decrease in loss per share, and is
regarded as anti-dilutive.

14.

BREE
EREREEIIERARNGESR AR
HMEFEFARAEEBEBBOARE
435,370,000L(ZF—RF : ARK
317,578,0007T ) & F A B 317 L @A
2 DNAESF A% £01,084,059,608% ( —
T—N4 1 1,080,827,914/% )51 & -
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Bz IEFIRBERER_T—tF
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BiEtEHE-_T—X~XE+_-A
=+ BUIEFESRERBENLEE
Bz NEFHREBIER T —XF
— A —HBE %17/1,067,579,6080%
BAY - LA R BEITE B AR M D BI R
TE-RNFEZAABR-ZT—RET
A ++ H217/16,200,0000% & 8 i
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BHE-—F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

15. M1% - BERRE

Furniture
fixtures
Plant and Motor  and office  Leasehold Construction
Buildings  machinery  vehicles equipment improvements in progress Total
il £EBR
BT HBEREE RE BOZRE HEEE  RRIE an
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Cost: M
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-A-H 72,543 21,309 1,912 6,195 40,795 4575 147,329
Additions Em - 1,698 - 447 346 106 2,597
Disposals HE - - - (1) - = (1)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~F+2A
=t+-H 72,543 23,007 1,912 6,531 4141 4,681 149815
Accumulated depreciation: ZitHE:
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-A-H 26,298 14,290 1,39 3,890 14112 - 59,988
Provided during the year EREfE 3,265 1,260 176 856 2,365 - 7,922
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - = - (105) - - (105)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—ET2R
=1-H 29,563 15,550 1,574 4,641 16,477 - 67,805
Net carrying amount; BE
At 31 December 2016 RZE-NET2R
=1-H 42,980 7,457 338 1,890 24,664 4,681 82,010
Cost: B
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F-f-H 72,543 23,007 1912 6,531 1141 4,681 149,815
Additions =yl - 4,360 - 143 632 5,303 10,438
Disposals il - (375) (182) (46) - - (603)
Transfer B - - - - 177 (177) -
Reclassified as held for sale ENERRARE (27,300) - - - (25,991) = (53,291)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tFT2R
=1-H 45,243 26,992 1,730 6,628 15,959 9,807 106,359
Accumulated depreciation: ZiHE:
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+E-A-H 29,563 15,550 1,574 4,641 16,477 - 67,805
Provided during the year EniE 3,265 1,264 114 m 1,052 - 6,467
Eliminated on disposals HEBHE - (144) (173) (39 - - (356)
Reclassified as held for sale ENRARERE = = = = (8973) = (8.973)
At 31 December 2017 St o2y el
=1-H 32,828 16,670 1,515 5,374 8,556 - 64,943
Net carrying amount: RHAE:
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t+E+2R
=1+-H 12,415 10,322 215 1,254 7,403 9,807 41416
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20 years

Plant and machinery 10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
office equipment
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 5 years

The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC and are
held under medium term leases.

The Group has pledged buildings with a net carrying
value of approximately RMB12,415,000 (2016:
RMB15,680,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15. M2 - BB Mkt (4)

LAt - BB RREEEB A NS

RIRERENE ¢

gF FAEI M 20F 2
BRE

VN 104

A 54

R -EKBER 5F

MAERME

HERE AHEESFZ

BRE

REBENBFAHGCNRE  REHH
GEROESEC

AEBEHEBAEAMFEHNDARE
12,415,000c(ZZF—~F : AR
15,680,000 ) WIEFIEA RS EE
B—RRIRITRE R -

16. LT #EE

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—B8REE 33,456 34,301
Amortisation during the year FREHE (845) (845)
Reclassified as held for sale BENRRFBEFE (4,926) -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—H®EKAE 27,685 33,456
Less: current portion included in B ETATRNRIE ke REH

prepayments, deposits and other fib MR IB R R BN #B 7

receivables (731) (816)
Non-current portion SERBENEL S 26,954 32,640
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHEZE—FT—+tF+_-_A=+—HIFE

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS (continued) 16. FEfF L (&)

The leasehold land is situated in the PRC and the METH AP B EETEMN LA
respective prepaid land lease payments are held under S iRERERAOEE -
medium term leases.
The Group has pledged the land use right with a net RNEEBEB K Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ)% BH AR
carrying amount of approximately RMB27,685,000 (2016: 27,685,0007t( —ZF —RF : ARK
RMB33,456,000) to secure general banking facilities 33,456,0007T ) By + b {5 BB 4% {E A AN
granted to the Group. SEER—RRITHENER-
17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
020
distribution Deferred
Technology vending development
Know-how system costs Total
0207 8 EER®
BiA®  EEER A BE
(notes a, ) (notes b, ¢) (note d)

(Wita c) (Mab-c)  (Hid)
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE AREBTRL ARETRL ARETR

Cost: B :
At 1 January 2016 R=F—~F—HA—H 1,483,117 - - 1,483,117
Addition pai 104,401 60,000 92,378 256,779
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZZ—RF

+-A=+-H8k

—E—+%—f—H 1,587,518 60,000 92,378 1,739,896
Addition i - - 150 150
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+&F

+t=A=t+—" 1,587,518 60,000 92,528 1,740,046
Accumulated amortisation and impairment: ,\uﬂéﬁﬁ&m
At 1 January 2016 NZE—~E—HA—H 6,501 - - 6,501
Provided for the year FEREE 105,401 = = 105,401
Impairment loss for the year FRREERE 325,616 = = 325,616
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R=Z—RF

+ZA=+—-Ak

“Z2—+%—F—H 437,518 - - 437,518
Provided for the year FEREE 123,214 4,954 93 128,261
Impairment loss for the year FRREERE 477,786 = 59,500 537,286
At 31 December 2017 RZE—LF

+=-RB=+—"H 1,038,518 4,954 59,593 1,103,065
Net carrying amount: FRIEHE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=A

=4—F 549,000 55,046 32,935 636,981
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE

+-B=+—H 1,150,000 60,000 92,378 1,302,378
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

It represented certain technological know-how in respect
of the application of graphene and includes one patent in
the US (“US Patent”), four invention patent applications,
three utility model patent applications and two utility
model patents in the PRC (collectively as “PRC Patents”),
relating to the manufacturing of graphene-based EVA
foam material, graphene deodorizing and sterilizing chips
and graphene-based pressure-sensitive sensors and the
exclusive formula (collectively “Technology Know-how"),
which was acquired from Bluestone, an independent third
party, in 2015.

The completion date of the transaction (“Completion
Date”) was 16 December 2015. The cost of the
Technology Know-how was determined by the directors
of the Company and represented the sum of the cash
consideration, the fair value of the convertible notes
(note 26) and provision for contingent consideration
at the acquisition date (note 27), and the capitalised
transaction costs arising directly from the acquisition of
the Technology Know-how. The Group's first graphene
application products mass production line was completed
and commenced trial production in late May 2016, and
mass production has already been commenced in July
2016.

The Technology Know-how has definite useful lives and is
amortised over 10 years using the straight-line method.

In July 2016, the Group acquired the design of Online-
to-Offline (“020") distribution vending system at the
consideration of RMB60,000,000 from two independent
third parties. The directors of the Company consider
that the 020 distribution vending system would provide
customers with an interactive and unique shopping
experience, enhance the distribution channel of the
products made by the Group and establish the core
technical competitiveness of the Group.

The 020 distribution vending system has definite useful
lives and is amortised over 9 years using the straight-line
method.

17. B EE (&)

izt :

(a)

EERAERKERNE T HiM
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(IZEFEF]) - FEMAEAFF
e —HEERMEENAEIM
RERHUEN(RBERITEE
MDA RBRETT (FRER M
A l)

REZEKAE ([ERBH]) A=
T—RAF+=A+/H it
WK ABHARRIESET ERE
KB AR R R (T 5E26) Rl A K
BERERWEBHNATE (Kt
27) N B B PR B I Al AN R T = AR
MERERGKAZ BT ANEE
EGEERRGEAERZEE
BER T —NF R AEERK MK
NRE YER-_ZE—A~"FLAH
FItA 2 EE -

KT EEBRAIERFE I
AEHBED10F 2 Y o

REZF—ARNFLA AEEEME
BUE=FKERLEET (1020])
DIHEERANRT REAAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ —=

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

The directors of the Company consider that 020
distribution vending system is a contributory asset
necessary to support the earnings associated with the
Technology Know-how (collectively “020 Unit”), being
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
earnings that are largely independent of the earnings from
other assets.

The directors of the Company conducted an impairment
assessment on the 020 Unit and considered that provision
for impairment to the carrying amount of the 020 Unit
of RMB477,786,000 (2016: RMB325,616,000) should
be made as at 31 December 2017, with reference to a
valuation of the value-in-use of the 020 Unit conducted
by an independent professional valuer, Ascent Partners
Valuation Service Limited (“Ascent Partners”), using
multi-period excess earnings method (2016: discounted
cash flow approach). The multi-period excess earnings
method is based on a discount rate of approximately
23.69% and financial forecasts approved by the directors
of the Company. Assumption of budgeted sales was
based on estimated daily average sales of slippers from
020 distribution vending system and expected growth
rate. Other key assumptions for the multi-period excess
earnings method relate to the estimation of earnings
which include estimated gross profit margin, operating
expenses and working capital requirements, such
estimation is based on the expected and forecasted
performance generated from the past performance of the
020 Unit and management’s expectations for the market
development.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

In July 2016, the Group engaged several independent
third parties in the research and development of
manufacturing and application technology of graphene
material on graphene deodorizing and sterilizing chips
(“Sterilizing Chips"”), energy storage materials for batteries
and pressure sensitive lighting devices for shoes (”Other
Deferred Development Costs”). The directors of the
Company seek the opportunities in applying the graphene
material in products other than shoes and plan to launch
in future.

The directors of the Company conducted an impairment
assessment on the Sterilizing Chips with reference to
a valuation of the value-in-use of the Sterilizing Chips
conducted by an independent professional valuer, Peak
Vision Appraisals Limited, using discounted cash flow
approach (2016: based on the management’'s own
estimate of the value-in-use). The discounted cash
flow approach is based on a post-tax discount rate of
approximately 19.19% and cash flow projections prepared
from financial forecasts approved by the directors of
the Company. Key assumptions for the discounted cash
flow approach relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows from the development projects which include
estimated gross profit margin, operating expenses and
working capital requirements, such estimation is based
on the expected and forecasted performance generated
from the use of the Sterilizing Chips and management'’s
expectations for the market development.

The directors of the Company conducted an impairment
assessment on Other Deferred Development Costs and
considered that the future economic benefits attributable
to Other Deferred Development Costs is uncertain and
provision for impairment of RMB59,500,000 (2016: Nil)
was made as at 31 December 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—ZF

18.

19.

—tFt-A=1—HILFE

INVENTORIES 18. F&
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETIT
Raw materials and consumables R4 N H FE SR 7,636 7,853
Work in progress TR 18,544 10,353
Finished goods B T 10,047 6,716
36,227 24,922

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
write-down of inventories of RMB98,000 (2016:
RMB2,003,000) was recognised in the profit or loss and
included in cost of sales.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

HE_ZT—+tF+_A=+—HILF
B RIEBEANERREBEEHERAN
W17 & MU & A R #98,0007T( =
T—NF : AR¥2,003,0007T)°

. EREZRARRERERE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T AREEFIT

Trade receivables JEUE 5 BRN 31,224 79,558
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RBRIE S (2,689) (3,426)
Bills receivables i ESiE 1,271 =
29,806 76,132

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period offered to its customers is
generally for a period of three months. The Group seeks
to apply strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a credit control department to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aging analysis of the Group's trade and bills
receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice dates,

19. BREZRARERRE (&)
KWK - AEEEYE S RAK
RSB ETRRIRRERZERAY
EIDMBRER AT :

is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Within 3 months 3MEA R 19,703 38,208
4 to 6 months 45 61E A 786 33,063
7 to 12 months 72121 A 6,405 4,861
Over 1 year 1A E 2,912 -
29,806 76,132

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills
receivables that are not considered to be impaired is as
follows:

SR B30 B A AR AR E RO B W E 5 B
AR EREBRNRRESTAT

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETTT AREF T

Neither past due nor impaired Rig EA N R B 19,703 38,208
Less than 3 months past due B EA3ME A LA 786 33,063
Over 3 months past due B HEARRE3E A 9,317 4,861
29,806 76,132

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivable
balances are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB10,103,000 (2016: RMB37,924,000) which are past
due as at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
mainly represent sales made to recognised and
creditworthy customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

NEFEWE FERRLEWEZHEAE
BIEEmEEAEARK10,103,0007T
(ZZE—"F : AR¥37,924,0007T)
MEWERZ ZEZERREBHE
60 HR - T AN & BN R B (E R (B &S
BRE- AEEVERZSERETER
(G

REMTERENEYFAEETR /M

MBEBEEEENEPIFLEE &
EEPIIHY B R AL EE -
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good repayment record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BHE-—F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

19. EREZRARKEVREE &)

E 8 HE SRR E &Y FE U SR IR S ) % fE
EAKBERTFERLENBILE
P -RBBERSR ARREFAR
R EEERUESERNNE  BZXF
DR AR 28K E - BB AED
BLERE

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RERERESEH
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREF T
As at 1 January n—H—H 3,426 1,361

(Reversal of)/impairment loss on trade FEUE SR CREER

receivables Bo), RiEEE (737) 2,065
As at 31 December nt+=—A=+—H 2,689 3,426

Included in the impairment loss are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
RMB2,689,000 (2016: RMB3,426,000) which are long
outstanding. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

21.

20. FENRIE - RERE BB

RECEIVABLES i
2017 2016
—E—+tF —TE-REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT

Prepayments: TERTFRIA -

— Advanced to suppliers — (Al FE R TR AT R 2,333 871
— Rental deposits —Heke - 318
— Prepaid land lease payments —TEf LA 731 816
— Others —HAh 1,315 1,209
Deposits Ze 4,128 185
Other receivables H th fE W 3KI8 1,814 4,203
Less: impairment loss on other receivables & : H fih J&E Y 3018 5 (E B 18 - (165)
10,321 7,437

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired
(2016: RMB165,000 of other receivables). The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK
BALANCES

Deposits were pledged for bills payable of RMB7,090,000
(2016: RMB14,277,000) for the year ended 31 December
2017 (note 23).

At 31 December 2017, the cash and bank balances and
pledged deposits of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB5,681,000 (2016: RMB5,944,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under the PRC Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Pledged deposits earn fixed
interest rate at 1.55% (2016: 1.55%) per annum. The
bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

21.

i BEEREABIRE(ZZE — <
0 H A RIE A R 165,000
TL)e T ALl AR & BB E BT B
W B R AL ER R EW R IBE B

CEREFER RERRTER

HE_ZT—+tE&E+-_A=1+—HI=F
B TERAE A RE7,090,00050( =
T—XF: AR¥14,277,0007T )
R RBIEE R (H5E23)-

R-ZZE—+E+=-—A=+—8 K&
BUARBAENRE RIBITEHK
BEERFERAEARS681,000T(=
T —NF : AR#5,944,0007T)° A
REASTERABKEMER - R
i AR I R B SN EE & I ik 1) B 4 B
EERMNIEETERT AEEEES
BEEETINEEBHRITHEARRE
HpK BN o

FTRESREBERBRITERFEmESN
FEEB R B - CERERIRETE
FE155%(=F— N4 : 1.55%) &t
B BITRBREERGERENRES
EE BTHEERACERMIRTT

HERY —T-tFFH
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22,

23.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 10 October 2017, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party at
a consideration of RMB26,000,000 to dispose of certain
property, plant and equipment with land use right located
in PRC. In accordance with IFRS 5, the disposal assets
were reclassified as assets held for sale. The directors of
the Company consider the completion of the disposal to
be within 1 year.

The major classes of assets classified as held for sale as at
31 December 2017 are as follows:

2. 7EARKRGENEE

R-E—+t&+A+H AEEHE—
BB E=FEIVEEmE AKRE
AR #26,000,000c L EWE - BE
AL A R AR B 2 - b fsP R o
BIREIR I mE R - HEE
EENOEARFERENEE -AA
AEERAEHEBR —FATHK

R-_EBE—+F+-_A=1+—HNEA
BEFENEEFTZHERINT :

2017
—E—tF
RMB’000
ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Impairment loss for the year

Bt L e
FRRERR

The Group has pledged the land use right with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB4,926,000 (2016:
Nil) to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

YER VG

44,318
4,926
(23,244)

26,000

AEEEEBFEEEFENARE
4,926,000;t( = — R F : E\)W L
HEAEEARNEBER —RETHR
BEHER-

23. ENEZRIRARENRE

2017 2016

—E—t5F —ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT AR®EF T

Trade payables FERTE 5 BRK 40,911 39,612
Bills payables ANES 7,090 14,277
48,001 53,889
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23. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 23. ENEZRRREMAERE @)
An aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables RERER AEBENEFERERK
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the e EE 2= H HEE| o R ERER 2T
invoice dates, is as follows: J(ul N

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR®ET T

Within 3 months 31E AR 29,396 36,998
Over 3 months 3@ A AL 18,605 16,891
48,001 53,889

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing ENESRANENZERS A
and are normally settled on six months terms (2016: — MR ANER(—E—RE: ~NEAR)
six months). Bills payable of RMB7,090,000 (2016: ANEE - N_ZBE—+tF+_A=+—
RMB14,277,000) were secured by the Group's pledged H ANEBRRBBACDCEHFERARE
deposits amounting to RMB2,127,000 as at 31 December 2,127,000( Z & — R F: AR

24,

2017 (2016: RMB4,283,000).

4,283,000t ) & A K #7,090,0007C
(ZZF—R"F : AR#¥14,277,0007T)
KT EIREL AR

DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES 24, EWRE  HiENSRERE
AND ACCRUALS 2

2017 2016

—E—tE T AF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Deposits received: BEYIES -
— Advanced from customers —BPENHKIE 300 300
— Others —Hfy 5,551 530
Value-added tax (“VAT”) payables FEAIEER ([HEEFR]) - 4,681
Accruals and other payables FEFTE R R H M EN IR 33,044 19,704
Provision for contingent consideration SN ERE (A aE27)
(note 27) 1,030 8,303
39,925 33,518
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have a credit HiENZRBETGE  ZEHARE

term of two to three months.

=fE8A -

mery —2—tees |49
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25.

—tFt-A=1—HILFE

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25. ;TEHBITEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETIT

Secured bank loans repayable AR —FANEENGER

within one year IRITERK 117,000 124,000
(@) At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the bank loans (@) M=—=ZT— ti&:f INE+—
were denominated in RMB (2016: RMB) and bore B=+—RH ST EFHAUAE

(b)

(@)

interest rates ranging from:

Year ended
31 December 2017

4.35% — 5.00% per annum

Year ended
31 December 2016

4.60% — 6.25% per annum

At 31 December 2017, the secured bank loans of
the Group were secured by a pledge of certain of
the Group’s buildings and land use rights, with
carrying amounts of approximately RMB12,415,000
(2016: RMB15,680,000) and approximately
RMB32,611,000 (2016: RMB33,456,000)
respectively. In addition, the bank loans were
secured by guarantees provided by an independent
third party and a director of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group has repaid the bank loans with principal
amount of RMB7,000,000.
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(b)

(@)

(=T —RF /\Eﬁg)u‘Hﬁ

WL LA TS E )8 K58
BE_Z—+tF BF435%=
+-A=+-8  5.00%

HFE

BEZZS—F HF460%Z
+=A=t-H 625%
HFE

RZE—+F+=—RA=+—8"
AEEL R EEFEREOAR
#12,415,0007c( =& — /R F ¢
AR #15,680,0007T ) & T2
FhHARE32,611,0007T( =
T —NF: AR¥33,456,000
L) LHFEREERASEAR
BIRIBITEROER N B
FAIRITERB—BBEILE=MN
M —BARNREEEREER-

BE_T—tHF+_-_A=1+—H
LFE AEEEEERSER

AFR#7,000,0007T 2 RITE R °
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26. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS
Valuation of the Convertible Notes and the

Warrants

The movements of the Convertible Notes and the

Warrants were as follows:

26. ABREERBRER
TRREERBREREE

A MBRER N RREENEZIT

2015 2016
Convertible Convertible 2012 2015
Notes Notes Warrants Warrants Total
ZZ-1f ZE-RE “E-CF “E-1E
TAREE TAREE ARER RRER an
(note a) (note ) (note b) (note b)
(Hita) (Wia) (Hith) (Hib)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEETT AREFT AREFT AREFTL
Fair value at 1 January 2016 RZE—"E-A-ANATE 91,717 - 11,146 10,444 113,307
Issued during the year FPELT - 55,411 - - 55,411
Derecognition during the year ERE R - - - (10,444) (10,444)
Fair value loss chargedi(gain credited) to -~ ERRERANRMATERE/
profit or loss during the year (GIAMATELE) 25,177 22,519 (6,079) - 41,617
Fair value at 31 December 2016and ~ RZE—F+-F=1t-HR
1 January 2017 “E-tEH-A-H
BATE 116,894 77,930 5,067 - 199,891
Derecognition during the year ERER D - - (5,067) - (5,067)
Fair value gain credited to profit or loss  £RHMBAREH ABIA FENE
during the year (29,892) (20,110) - - (50,002)
Fair value at 31 December 2017 RE—+tF+-f=1-H
BATE 87,002 57,820 - - 144,822
Represented by: AATRERR
217 3%
Current portion eI 87,002 - - - 87,002
Non-current portion A - 57,820 - - 57,820
87,002 57,820 - - 144,822
216 ZE 0k
Current portion TEs - - 5,067 = 5,067
Non-current portion Fnads 116,894 77930 - - 194,824
116,894 77930 5067 . 199,891

HERY —T-tFFH
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26. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

(continued)

Valuation of the Convertible Notes and the
Warrants (continued)

Notes:

(a)

In connection with the acquisition of the Technology
Know-how as explained in note 17, the Company
issued zero-coupon unsecured convertible notes (the
“2015 Convertible Notes”) with principal amount of
HK$110,880,000 as part of the initial consideration on
16 December 2015. As a settlement of part of contingent
consideration, the Company also issued zero-coupon
unsecured convertible notes (the “2016 Convertible
Notes”) with principal amount of HK$73,920,000 on 2
February 2016.

The 2015 Convertible Notes and 2016 Convertible Notes
(collectively the “Convertible Notes”) entitle the holder
to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) at any time from the date of issue of the
2015 Convertible Notes and 2016 Convertible Notes to
the date immediately prior to the Maturity Dates, being
the third anniversary of the date of issue, in multiples
of HK$1,000,000 at a conversion price of HK$0.84 per
conversion share subject to adjustments in certain events.
The shares to be allotted and issued upon conversions
shall rank pari passu in all respects among themselves and
with all other ordinary shares in issue by the Company on
the date of such allotment and issue. Also, the Company
has a right to redeem the Convertible Notes at any time
before the maturity date of the Convertible Notes.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
Convertible Notes holder did not convert any Convertible
Notes.

The Convertible Notes included a debt instrument with
embedded derivatives. Upon initial recognition, the
Convertible Notes are designated as financial liabilities
at FVTPL since it contains embedded foreign exchange
derivatives. The fair values of the Convertible Notes are
remeasured at the end of each reporting period and any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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TRERERARERGE(E)
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(a)

BB 5217 i 75 [ Uk B i A0 R
ms ARARIMNZZE—HFE+=A
T7NB#EITAEF /110,880,000
T2 EREEEBIREERE ([=
T-RFABRER]) ERES
MMPRE-EREEIARED
— M ARRTRZE—REFZ
A= B #1724 £% /73,920,000
THZEREEEBRRERE ([=
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—E-RFABRREER =T
FURKREBEE(RBAREUREKRE
BB THEAENAIR=_Z—H
Fo R EER =T — NFal#K
ZERFETABREEZEEREA (A
BTN E=EBEFEH)R —
B &) E ] B X + 241,000,000 7t 89
& BRI E T IR IR AR 15 0.8478
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—AFABRBREBER T —RFA
BB RERARRAREBR ([
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NATN BN AR EERE A A A
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26. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS
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(continued)

Valuation of the Convertible Notes and the
Warrants (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Valuation

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the fair values of
the Convertible Notes were based on the valuations
performed by Ascent Partners and calculated using the
binomial model and the inputs into the model were as

26. AR TR RERERE ()

TRERERARERGE(E)

Ffat: (&)
@ (&)

ERE]

RZE—+tER=_F— R F+=A
=+—H ABRREBENAFED
BB AFETHGHE LRAZ
HEAFE 2B A8 ASE

follows: T
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
2015 Convertible Notes —E-HFUBRRERE
Stock closing price (HK$) RE W AEE (BT) 0.52 0.99
Principal amount (HK$'000) RegE (FHT) 110,880 110,880
Coupon rate (%) R 2 (%) 0 0
Conversion price (HK$) HBARE (BT) 0.84 0.84
Volatility (%) 8 (%) 84.94 81.76
Risk-free rate (% per annum) mEBTE%  FF) 1.04 1.07
Expected life (years) TEHASEH (&) 0.96 1.96
Expected dividend yield (%) T8 HA A% B 2 2R (%) 0 0
2016 Convertible Notes TE-AFUBRRER
Stock closing price (HK$) REWAEE (HBTT) 0.52 0.99
Principal amount (HK$'000) AeF (FHT) 73,920 73,920
Coupon rate (%) SR 2 (%) 0 0
Conversion price (HK$) BB (BT) 0.84 0.84
Volatility (%) & (%) 79.09 80.88
Risk-free rate (% per annum) mREBTE%  FF) 1.07 1.10
Expected life (years) TEHAGEH (&) 1.09 2.09
Expected dividend yield (%) T8 HA A% B 2 2R (%) 0 0
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26. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

(continued)

Valuation of the Convertible Notes and the
Warrants (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into with
Asia Equity Value Ltd (the “Subscriber”) on 8 June 2012
(the “Subscription Agreement”), the Company issued a
7% senior guaranteed convertible notes with a principal
amount of HK$176,000,000 (i.e. RMB143,470,000)
(the “2012 Convertible Notes”) to the Subscriber on 21
June 2012 (the “Issuance Date”). No 2012 Convertible
Notes remained outstanding as at 31 December 2015.
In addition, pursuant to the Subscription Agreement,
the Company also issued to the Subscriber warrants (the
“2012 Warrants”) which carry the rights to subscribe for
62,026,431 new Shares as a condition to the issuance of
the 2012 Convertible Notes.

The 2012 Warrants initially give the holder of the 2012
Warrants (the “Warrants Holder”) the rights to subscribe
for 62,026,431 new Shares. The initial subscription
price of the 2012 Warrants is HK$1.53 per share (the
“Subscription Price”), subject to anti-dilution adjustment
for stock dividends, stock splits, dilutive securities
issuances and other customary adjustment events from
time to time in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the 2012 Warrants.
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26. AR FERERERE ()

TRERERARERGE(E)

ff &t -

(b)

(%)

BER-_ZT—Z—F~ANAH
Asia Equity Value Ltd ([REA )
%Tﬁmmﬁ%b% : ([REWHZE])
Z’KZ\\ \—i —E'E/\TH :—*—*
B ([T MREAZBTAR
4 %8 /4176,000,000/8 7T (B) A R
143,470,0007T) %£7%§+ SHIE ST
EERUTBBRER ([ ZTE—Z=F
ARBEEE]) R — £¢+_

BA=+—H #BlEg_—=——Fr
BB AT - b AN IR IR R IE
Wk ARE N AREAEITRR
EF(ZZ—=-—FRAREE])
f’Fﬁ?ﬁ‘ﬂ_%*_i—H‘%H =%
B 51 - SRR HERE B 5 #EF AT RS
62,026,431Hx%ﬁﬂx1

=¥ —FRBRMENSBT =%
imk%ﬁhﬁAUuk%%

A AR - ]32862,026,431
fRFT Rt - =& f_i RREE B
%}J%{JE%F?%:W 5378 7T ([REE
&l) ARE= ZFRBAEF
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26. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

(continued)

Valuation of the Convertible Notes and the
Warrants (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

On 7 February 2013, the Company entered into
a supplemental instrument with the Subscriber to
amend certain major terms and conditions of the 2012
Warrants (the “Supplemental Warrants Instrument”). The
Supplemental Warrants Instrument had been approved by
the Subscriber as the sole holder of the 2012 Warrants
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 2012
Warrants. In accordance with the Supplemental Warrants
Instrument, the Company and the Subscriber agreed
that any adjustments to the Subscription Price should
take effect if the adjustment is HK$0.01 or more. The
Subscription Price had been adjusted from HK$1.53 to
HK$1.49 with effect from 12 October 2012 as a result of
the distribution of the 2012 interim dividend of HK2.5
cents per ordinary share by the Company.

According to the agreement amongst the Subscriber and
three independent third parties (the “Transferees”) on 29
October 2014, the 2012 Warrants were transferred from
the Subscriber to the Transferees on 29 October 2014.

The subscription period of the 2012 Warrants commences
from 6 months after the Issuance Date (i.e. 22 December
2012) (the “Warrants Subscription Date”), and expired on
the fifth anniversary from the Warrants Subscription Date
(i.e. 22 December 2017).

On 13 March 2015, the Company entered into a new
warrants subscription agreement (the “2015 Warrants
Subscription Agreement”) with two warrants subscribers
(the “2015 Warrants Subscribers”) in relation to the issue
of a total of 88,000,000 warrants (the “2015 Warrants"”)
to the 2015 Warrants Subscribers at the issue price of
HK$0.07 per 2015 Warrant. The subscription rights
attaching to the 2015 Warrants expired on 20 October
2016.

—tFt-A=1—HIFE

26. AR TR RERERE ()

TRERERARERGE(E)

ff & -

(b)

(&)
(#&)
RZE—=F"_A+tH XRQAH

M%AJiﬁEYﬁ T ==

“FRBEENETEERR R
1 #(Wﬁﬁuﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ> 7
REEBEBXEERE-S——FR
&%‘mﬁﬁﬁwwxmﬁA(ﬁ
BT —FRAREFNE—FE
A ) BEAE o 1R HE 1 75 SR AR 4 3B S -
ARBIRRBRBARE WMt REE
%#m&ﬁﬂﬁiﬂatﬂom@
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26. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

(continued)

Valuation of the Convertible Notes and the
Warrants (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

No warrants have been exercised during both years ended
31 December 2016 and 2017.

The 2012 Warrants and 2015 Warrants (collectively as the
“Warrants") are classified as derivatives and are accounted
for as financial liabilities at FVTPL upon initial recognition
since it contains embedded foreign exchange derivatives.
The fair values of the Warrants are remeasured at the end
of each reporting period and any gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Valuation

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the 2012
Warrants was based on the valuation performed by
Asset Appraisal Limited, which is an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers and calculated using the
binomial model and the inputs into the model were as
follows:

—tFt-A=1—HILFE

26. AR FERERERE ()

TRERERARERGE(E)

et (&)

(b)

(%)

NBZE-F-AFR-F—+%F
+=A=+-BLMEFE B
RIEEETLE -

*?*zifmﬁTE%&:;fﬂi
REEE (SRR RRESE]) D
*Eﬁmilﬂ N SN
PIEIR A FEAETNEHE
B RERESEHRANINENT A
TE-BRREZIHNRATFERESEH
HREFH=E A TELHELEN

EfI B BN R AR
fh{E
E/\ 3 /\TEE—'—:HE—'—*E’:

T —FREEENQFEDRE
hBEEEERRER AR PE
THHEFE ZARRBIER
EEBMGEMLRA ZBRAGFE
E ZEANBABENAT

2016
—E—RF

2012 Warrants —E-FRRESR
Stock closing price (HK$) IREWEE (BTT) 0.99
Exercise price (HK$) T1EE (BT) 1.49
Volatility (%) B8 (%) 55.71
Risk-free rate (% per annum) BB FR (% BF) 0.85
Expected life (years) 8 5 F Hf (¢> 0.98
Expected dividend yield (%) T8 HRR B U R (%) 0
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27. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT

CONSIDERATION

In connection with the acquisition of the Technology
Know-how as explained in note 17, provision for
contingent consideration as at 31 December 2015
represented the acquisition-date fair value of contingent
consideration of i) a maximum of approximately
RMB1,289,409,836 in cash (“Cash Consideration”); and
ii) the contingent convertible notes (“Contingent CNs"”)
with principal amount of HK$73,920,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB60,590,164), which will be issued
by the Company after fulfilment of certain conditions
specified in the acquisition agreement signed on 14
October 2015 (”Acquisition Agreement”), as part of
the consideration for the acquisition of the Technology
Know-how.

The settlement of Cash Consideration and the
Contingent CNs is subject to the following conditions:

“Second Instalment Conditions” refer to (a) the
registration of the transfer of the PRC Patents and
the US Patent having been completed in the State
Intellectual Property Office of the PRC and the United
States Patent and Trademark Office respectively, such that
the Company having become the applicant of the PRC
Patents (or if the PRC Patents are granted, the Company
having become the PRC Patents owner) under the record
of the State Intellectual Property Office of the PRC, and
the Company having become the US Patent owner under
the record of the United States Patent and Trademark
Office; and (b) the training provided by Bluestone
to the technicians of the Group and its contracted
parties having been completed, such that the Group
and its contracted parties having been able to produce
graphene-based EVA foam material and graphene
deodorizing and sterilizing chips based on the Technology
Know-how independently, and the graphene-based EVA
foam material and graphene deodorizing and sterilizing
chips produced having been certified by an independent
technical organisation at provincial level or above to
meet the inspection standard as stipulated under the
Acquisition Agreement.
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27. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT

CONSIDERATION (continued)

Upon fulfilment of the Second Instalment Conditions, the
second instalment in the amount of RMB450,000,000
should be payable by the Company, of which (a)
RMB389,409,836 should be paid in cash within 6
months after fulfilment of the Second Instalment
Conditions; and (b) RMB60,590,164 should be satisfied
by issuing the convertible notes with principal amount
of HK$73,920,000 to Bluestone or its nominee(s) within
15 business days after the fulfilment of the Second
Instalment Conditions.

“Third Instalment Conditions” refer to (a) the
accumulated turnover of a special purpose vehicle
("SPV") to be established by the Group for the sales
of graphene-based EVA foam material, graphene
deodorizing and sterilizing chips and graphene-based
wearable devices manufactured using the Technology
Know-how and/or any other companies (other than
companies of the Group) authorised to use the
Technology Know-how having reached RMB40,000,000;
and (b) the sales volume of graphene-based EVA foam
material having reached 20,000 cubic meters, each within
9 months after the Completion Date (or such later date
as the Company may agree).

Upon fulfilment of the Second Instalment Conditions
and the Third Instalment Conditions, the third instalment
in the amount of RMB270,000,000 should be payable
by the Company in cash to Bluestone or its nominee(s)
within 15 business days after the fulfilment of the Third
Instalment Conditions.

Second Instalment Conditions and Third Instalment
Conditions had been fulfilled and the Company had paid
RMB389,409,836 by way of cash and RMB60,590,164 by
way of issuing the 2016 Convertible Notes (refer to note
26) and RMB270,000,000 by way of cash on 2 February
2016 and 8 September 2016 respectively.
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27. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT

CONSIDERATION (continued)

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, upon fulfilment
of the Second Instalment Conditions and the Third
Instalment Conditions, Bluestone is entitled to share 35%
of the earnings before interests, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA”) of the SPV for the 6-month
period ended 30 June or 31 December of each year
(“Interim Financial Period”) starting from the year the
Second Instalment Conditions and the Third Instalment
Conditions are fulfilled and each subsequent Interim
Financial Period (until the end of the sixth financial year
ending 31 December from the Completion Date), subject
to a maximum sharing amount of RMB630,000,000 (the
“EBITDA Sharing Mechanism”).

For the avoidance of doubt, the financial year in which
the Completion Date ending on would be considered
as the first financial year for the purpose of the EBITDA
Sharing Mechanism. During the period under the EBITDA
Sharing Mechanism, for each Interim Financial Period, the
Company should appoint an independent auditor to issue
a certificate for the EBITDA of the SPV during the relevant
Interim Financial Period within 4 months from the end
of such Interim Financial Period, and the sharing amount
shall be paid by the Company in cash to Bluestone or its
nominee(s) within 15 business days after the issuance
of such certificate. Any license fees for the Technology
Know-how payable by the SPV to the Group will be
disregarded in the calculation of the EBITDA.

If the accumulated EBITDA of the SPV during the period
under the EBITDA Sharing Mechanism is less than
RMB1,800,000,000 (for the purpose, if the SPV records a
loss in any Interim Financial Period, the EBITDA of the SPV
of that Interim Financial Period would be regarded as zero
in calculating the accumulated EBITDA), the total sharing
amount under the EBITDA Sharing Mechanism will be less
than RMB630,000,000 and the Company is not obligated
to pay the shortfall between RMB630,000,000 and 35%
of the actual accumulated EBITDA of the SPV during the
period under the EBITDA Sharing Mechanism.
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27. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT 27.

CONSIDERATION (continued)

Provision for contingent consideration as at 31 December
2017 represented the contingent cash consideration
payable to Bluestone or its nominee(s) under the EBITDA
Sharing Mechanism.

The movements of the provision for contingent

HARNERE )

R-ZEBE—+FE+=-A=1+—HHR
RBREAETEARIZEBITDA D B HL il FE £t
EAERZANSARESRE-

KARER B EEWT

consideration were as follows:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —ERF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT

As at the beginning of the year REH] 276,868 1,029,203

Amount incurred during the year FANFTARTE (8.678) -

Settlement during the year FARNEE - (610,420)

Fair value gain credited to profit or loss ~ FRNEZEETAZ AFE

during the year Wz (219,888) (141,915)

As at the end of the year RER 48,302 276,868
Current portion included in deposits FTAE BIEE - At B I8

received, other payables and accruals NIESTER ZREE o (1,030) (8,303)

Non-current portion ERBE D 47,272 268,565

The fair value of the provision for contingent
consideration is calculated using the discounted cash flow

o

IARRERENAFERBURAS
TOACT—RF  MRBEERA)F

By

approach (2016: discounted cash flow approach). The B RN B+ FR T —RE+—

inputs into the approach as at 31 December 2017 and A=+—8 ZA08HAZENT :
2016 were as follows:

2017 2016

—E—+tHF NS

Discount rate BhIE =& 12.32%- 12.15%-

12.54% 12.69%

Note: All Contingent CNs have already been issued as at 31 MisE: FTASKARRBREZEREE F-_Z—~

December 2016.
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PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT
CONSIDERATION (continued)

The provision for contingent consideration is classified
as a financial liability which will then be measured at fair
value and any changes in fair value will be recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The directors of the Company conducted a fair value
assessment of the provision for contingent consideration
as at 31 December 2017, with reference to a valuation
conducted by Ascent Partners.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

The amount represents Group’s withholding taxes to
the dividend payable by a PRC subsidiary amounted
RMB62,075,000 as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. BA&
The details of the authorised and issued share capital of ARBVEEREBITRA Z2FIEW
the Company are as follows: T
2017 2016
—B-tF TR
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Authorised: iy
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each 5,000,000,000/R BIREE0.01ETTH &
Bk 342,400 342,400
Issued and fully paid: BETRER :
1,084,059,608 (2016: 1,084,059,608) ordinary shares of  1,084,059,608( =Z —734F
US$0.01 each 1,084,059,608% ) BIREE0.01% T
HERR 71,629 71,629
Ordinary shares ZiEMR
Number of ordinary
shares of US$0.01 Nominal value of Nominal value of
each ordinary shares ordinary shares
BREEO
ETNEER
#A EEREE LEREE
US$'000 RMB'000
TER ARETT
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, RZE-5-A-R
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 ZE-AETZAZT-B
“EtE-A-BR
“2—+#+-A=+-H 5,000,000,000 50,000 342,400
Issued: 2R
At 1 January 2016 RZE—rE-A—H 1,067,579,608 10,676 70,555
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options ~ FMT{ERERERZ{TRG
(note 30) (Hzt30) 16,480,000 165 1,074
At 31 December 2016, RZE—A"E+-R=t-H"
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 “E—+F-f-Hk
“EtETA=1-H 1,084,059,608 10,841 71,629
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 January 2011, the Company operates a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Eligible participants of the Share
Option Scheme include, among others, the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors,
employees, suppliers of goods or services, customers,
consultants of the Group, the Company’s shareholders,
and any non-controlling shareholder in the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Share Option Scheme became effective
on 28 January 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all option to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Group
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
at the Listing Date. The maximum number of Shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the Shares in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the Shares in issue and or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

An offer of the grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors of the Company, and which
shall not exceed 10 years after the date on which the
share options are granted and accepted. The exercise of
any option may be subject to a vesting schedule to be
determined by the Board.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors of the Company, but may not be less than
the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme during the year:
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30. B HERTEI(8)

BREZITEERARRZESET
BETABERUATZRSE  (RHR
BREZHABEBETZ WTE
(iR EEZNHBAAER S A
TR R B 2 Ui {8 R (i) iR 19 By TE
=R

BRAEY T TR A ARBUR B R
BRARERE R

FA - RBEHBEBE S W RTTENE
Pt

2017 2016
—E—+tHF AN

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price options price options
hn#E 15 BRE nETH (=gl
TEE #E 1TEE Eog=

HK$ HK$

B 7T BT
At 1 January S—H—H 0.73 153,200,000 0.83 69,250,000
Granted during the year FAFE - = 0.70 105,800,000
Forfeited during the year FRR UL 0.80 (9,520,000) 1.10 (5,370,000)
Exercised during the year FATTHE - - 0.81 (16,480,000
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—AH 0.73 143,680,000 0.73 153,200,000

No share option was granted (2016: 105,800,000)
and exercised (2016: 16,480,000) during the year,
and 9,520,000 (2016: 5,370,000) share options were
forfeited during the year due to cessation of employment
of the participants.

The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2017
were vested to the grantees in the following manner:

- 10,917,000 of such share options were vested on
10 December 2015 with an exercise period from 10
December 2015 to 9 December 2020.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

19,356,000 of such share options were vested on
10 December 2016 with an exercise period from 10
December 2016 to 9 December 2020.

3,195,000 of such share options were vested on 10
December 2017 with an exercise period from 10
December 2017 to 9 December 2020.

2,556,000 of such share options will be vested on
10 December 2018 with an exercise period from 10
December 2018 to 9 December 2020.

2,556,000 of such share options will be vested on
10 December 2019 with an exercise period from 10
December 2019 to 9 December 2020.

52,140,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2016 with an exercise period from 24 June
2016 to 23 June 2021.

35,920,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2017 with an exercise period from 24 June
2017 to 23 June 2021.

2,900,000 of such share options will be vested on
24 June 2018 with an exercise period from 24 June
2018 to 23 June 2021.

2,320,000 of such share options will be vested on
24 June 2019 with an exercise period from 24 June
2019 to 23 June 2021.

2,320,000 of such share options will be vested on
24 June 2020 with an exercise period from 24 June
2020 to 23 June 2021.

1,425,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2016 with an exercise period from 16
December 2016 to 15 December 2021.

: ﬂﬁﬂﬁ%‘l‘.](ﬁr
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

1,900,000 of such share options were vested on
December 2017 with an exercise period from
December 2017 to 15 December 2021.

2,375,000 of such share options will be vested
16 December 2018 with an exercise period from
December 2018 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options will be vested
16 December 2019 with an exercise period from
December 2019 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options will be vested
16 December 2020 with an exercise period from
December 2020 to 15 December 2021.

16
16

on
16

on
16

on
16

The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2016
were vested to the grantees in the following manner:

166

12,002,000 of such share options were vested
10 December 2015 with an exercise period from
December 2015 to 9 December 2020.

21,176,000 of such share options were vested
10 December 2016 with an exercise period from
December 2016 to 9 December 2020.

5,470,000 of such share options were vested on
December 2017 with an exercise period from
December 2017 to 9 December 2020.

4,376,000 of such share options will be vested
10 December 2018 with an exercise period from
December 2018 to 9 December 2020.

4,376,000 of such share options will be vested
10 December 2019 with an exercise period from
December 2019 to 9 December 2020.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

52,245,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2016 with an exercise period from 24 June
2016 to 23 June 2021.

36,060,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2017 with an exercise period from 24 June
2017 to 23 June 2021.

3,075,000 of such share options will be vested on
24 June 2018 with an exercise period from 24 June
2018 to 23 June 2021.

2,460,000 of such share options will be vested on
24 June 2019 with an exercise period from 24 June
2019 to 23 June 2021.

2,460,000 of such share options will be vested on
24 June 2020 with an exercise period from 24 June
2020 to 23 June 2021.

1,425,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2016 with an exercise period from 16
December 2016 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2017 with an exercise period from 16
December 2017 to 15 December 2021.

2,375,000 of such share options will be vested on
16 December 2018 with an exercise period from 16
December 2018 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options will be vested on
16 December 2019 with an exercise period from 16
December 2019 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options will be vested on
16 December 2020 with an exercise period from 16
December 2020 to 15 December 2021.

3OEHE+JW

ZE B ERS52,245,00010 B A
—E—RNFEANAZTHEHEE
TEHAE—ZT—RFAA-+HE
He—_Z-—%XA-+=H-

Z LR 36,060, ooo@eﬁ
—E—+tFERA-THBR

TSR T—tF A -1—@
E|;|:_7— E/\H + He

5% = B8 IR #93,075,00017 #5 1
—E-N\FARA-THEHEE
TEHAE—_T—N\FA-+HO
E':I:-?— E/\ﬂ + El o

5% 55 & I #E §92,460,00017 #8 A
—E-hNFANA-tHBERE
AFEHAE—_T—AFEA-1tHN
HE—_Z-—4%,HA-+=H-

% %5 B8 AR §92,460,00017 #% 1
—ECFTFRACD +EEE~“
TEHAE_ZE_ZTF A=+
HE-_Z-_—4%,A=-+=H-

ZEERER,425,00010 E R
—E-RE+-A+BRE
TEHE-ZT—RF+_A+~
Hze—_Z-—4%+_A+HHB-

#% % 8 B 91,900,000 B
“E—+F+ZATREER-
TEMA-T—tF+_A+K
AE-F_—F+_-A+tHA-

2% & BB AR #92,375,00017 #5 1
—E—N\FF+_At+BHEE"
TERAEZE—N\F+ZA T+
BE-_T_-_—F+-_A+tAaH-

% % BE IR #E 891,900,00017 #8 A
—E-hE+-A+BEE-"
TEHE—_E—NE+_A+
BE-_ET—_—4+_-HA+HhHH-

5% 55 BE IR #E §91,900,00017 #8 A
:§:§¢+—H+ﬁaa~
EIEE_T:—E‘I'_H T
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

30. BB AEST &l ()
R 2 HER M ARTT R B AR T2

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

BRATERIT

2017

—g—tf

Number of Exercise price

share options HKS$ per share Exercise period

BREHER TEESRET 1TEHR

9,500,000 0.99 16 December 2016 to 15 December 2021
—E—RFt+=-At+ANBE_ZE-_—F+-_A+FAH

95,600,000 0.67 24 June 2016 to 23 June 2021
—E-RERAZTHBEZZE=_—FXAZt+=H

38,580,000 0.81 10 December 2015 to 9 December 2020

—RhAF+-_A+BE-_ZT-_ZTF+_AANA

2016

—E—XF

Number of Exercise price

share options HKS$ per share Exercise period

BRERE THEESRET 1TEHR

9,500,000 0.99 16 December 2016 to 15 December 2021
—E—RFt+-_A+RNBE-_ZE-_—F+-_A+HH

96,300,000 0.67 24 June 2016 to 23 June 2021
—E-RFERNACZtTHEEE=ZE=—FXA=+=H

47,400,000 0.81 10 December 2015 to 9 December 2020

T -HF+T_ATRE_T_TF+_ANH
The fair value of the share options granted during the HE_ZT—AF+A=+—HLHF

year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$24,872,000
(equivalent to RMB20,837,000) of which the Group 24,872,000 T( H & X AR &
recognised share option expenses of RMB8,532,000 and 20,837,0007T ) EFAEEREHEZ
RMB860,000 during the years ended 31 December 2016 E—REERZE—tEF+ZA=1T—
and 2017 respectively. HIEFEDRERBRERS AR
8,532,0007T & A R #860,0007T °

ECROINBRERIAFESR

The fair value of the share options granted on 24 June RZE—A"FESNAZ+THAERZ=ZF
2016 and 16 December 2016 was HK$18,960,000 —NETZA+AAEBRENBERER
(equivalent to RMB16,204,000) and HK$3,924,000 1B 5 7l /18,960,000 7T (FHE R A
(equivalent to RMB3,510,000) of which the Group K #16,204,0007T ) %3,924,0007% 7T
recognised share option expenses of RMB12,180,000 (HHERAR¥3,510, OOOfE) EEPZ!K
and RMB4,551,000 during the years ended 31 December EEREE_E—RNFR_ZE—+tF
2016 and 2017 respectively. +-A=+—HBLEEED E‘Jﬁ@w@ﬁ%
MR 2 A R%12,180,0007T R AR
#4,551,0007T °
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

31.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 16,480,000 of
exercised share options with fair value of approximately
RMB4,563,000 which previously recognised in share
options reserve had been transferred to share premium.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 9,520,000
(2016: 5,370,000) of forfeited share options with fair value
of approximately RMB2,490,000 (2016: RMB1,474,000)
which previously recognised in share options reserve had
been transferred to retained profits.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had 143,680,000
(2016: 153,200,000) share options outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately
13.3% (2016: 14.1%) of the Shares in issue as at that
date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 143,680,000
(2016: 153,200,000) additional Shares and additional
share capital and share premium of approximately
HK$11,231,000 (equivalent to RMB9,388,000) (2016:
HK$11,881,000 and equivalent to RMB10,628,000)
and approximately HK$93,476,000 (equivalent to
RMB78,137,000) (2016: HK$100,439,000 equivalent to
RMB89,844,000), before issue expenses.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior reporting periods are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

(i) Contributed surplus

On 17 January 2011, CITIC Capital, the Company
and its shareholders had entered into certain
conditional release and discharge agreements,
pursuant to which, the new exchangeable note
would be duly released and discharged, which had
taken place on the Listing Date, 28 January 2011,
and prior to the commencement of the trading of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange. Accordingly,
the liability component of the new exchangeable
note of RMB57,768,000 on the Listing Date was
extinguished and transferred to the contributed
surplus in shareholders’ equity upon the full
conversion of the new exchangeable note.

mEBMBERRWE

—F—tFFA=t—HUFE

30. B HERTEI(8)

31.

HE—_ZT—XF+-_A=1+—HI%F
€ » 16,480,0001) B 17 5 BE AR R A
BREFREERZNDAFEHNARE
4,563,0007T B B = AR5 (B

BE-_Z—+t&E+-_A=+—HIF
J£°9,520,000( = & — /X 4
5,370,000) {7 Eiﬁuﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬁﬁéﬁﬁw

B ER %‘MEZW\EM
2,490,000c( —F—~F: AR

1,474,000 ) E E B = RE )G F

R—_E—+t&F+_A=+—H8 ' &A
AN BEREEETES
143,680,0000( =— & — X £
153,200,00017 ) 18] AR 17 {58 &9 i AR
HRZBHBEBEITRMAI13.3%(=
T—7NF  14.1%) IBEBEARQ A IR
BARERE  BETEZERRITED
i A% 4 % 28 BURE S 32 17 143,680,000
f% (=2 — 754 : 153,200,0000% ) A%
19 R BB IMNIR AN R A% 15 e 18 (R FO Bk 3%
TR ) D AI411,231, ooo;%ﬁ(ifa“‘
R AR®9,388,0007T )( Z T — /N4 -
11,881,000 ' HE R A R &
10,628,000t ) & 4993,476,0007% JT
(BERARM78,137,0007T )( = Z
— 734 100,439,000 7T #HE A
R #:89,844,0007T) °

o4
KB A RBE 2 RIBRD - A A
e ERRNSIIN AR

(i) EHAELK
R=ZE—F—HA++tH" CTIC
Capital * KRR R ERRFI L&
T B IR BB R BB E &
R Em BRI T ——&F—
A=+ \BERDRE R TR
BEZA A RRERELR
FRBR BB - B itt - MR B
MR ER% - R LT A B
THEBREEAGBEIOARK
57,768,0007T B i $5 3 835 8 ==
RiEm AN B AR -
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31. RESERVES (continued)

()

(ii)

(iii)

Contributed surplus (continued)

Pursuant to the stock borrowing agreement entered
into between Best Mark and the Subscriber on 21
June 2012, Best Mark lent 32,000,000 Shares to
the Subscriber. Upon initial recognition, the value
of such contribution amounting to approximately
RMB12,183,000 from the substantial shareholder
was accounted for as a deemed contribution in the
shareholder’s equity. The carrying amount of such
contribution from the substantial shareholder is not
remeasured in subsequent years.

On 10 September 2012, Best Mark and the
Subscriber entered into a letter agreement (the
“Call and Put Option Confirmation”) pursuant to
which the Subscriber had granted to the Best Mark
the right to purchase 32,000,000 of the Shares at
a strike price of HK$1.01 and the Best Mark has
granted the Subscriber the right to require the Best
Mark to purchase 32,000,000 of the Shares at the
same strike price.

On 17 December 2014, the Company was informed
by Best Mark that 32,000,000 Shares had been
transferred by the Subscriber to Best Mark and
the transaction set out in the Call and Put Option
Confirmation was terminated.

Statutory surplus fund

In accordance with the relevant regulations
applicable in the PRC, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to transfer a
certain percentage of its statutory annual profits
after tax (after offsetting any prior period’s losses), if
any, to the statutory surplus fund until the balance
of the fund reaches 50% of its registered capital.
Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus fund
may be used to offset against accumulated losses
of the PRC subsidiary. The amount of the transfer is
subject to the approval of the board of directors of
the PRC subsidiary.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations
outside the PRC which are dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 3 to the
financial statements.
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31. @#EE)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

ERER(E)
BEAR-—ZE——FA=-+—H
Best MarkE2=RHE A R] 3 Y fE A%
% Best Mark/Al R 88 A &
% 532,000,0000% o 1A ¥ )X #E 78
% BRATERFIENEEY
A AR #12,183,0007T R E
@B NARINAHREETE-B
BEERFELAEERTER
EBFENTEH=Z -

WN=—ZF— % N A 1+ H - Best
MarkE2 R BB AT — DS
((RBRREHAEERE]) B
it - 7REE A [AIBest Markd® £ LATT
f# {81.01%8 Jt 8 EBest Mark
32,000,0000% f% {7 9 F| + MBest
Mark @ 7288 A % i Z3kBest Mark
LA#E R 77 {68 {8 & E32,000,000%
AR An RORERI o

R-ZT—MNFE+-F++H £Q
7] /EBest Mark# A1+ 32,000,000
B A% D E B R EE A 8 & TBest
Mark - 308 & Rh B FE R E
FTERR B KL -

EEBBRAEE
RIFFEEBERRL N EE
FER BRSO B A RIZARDEE
FERR R 5 A (2 3 38
EHREBR)(ME)NETED
BB ELXFRBAEE BE
NRESHEHREINEFMEARN
50% A1k RE B AEE A A
YR SH R B P B X ) ) RFHE
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases a production plant and premises under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for these properties
are negotiated for average terms of one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

32. WEMNRH
AEBRBEERORHAE LER
B RS- X EMEN T HRBER
BER—GFERF-

REBHPR  AEERE AT HEL
LHAR T B HEim e R RRIEHE

SIREENAT :
2017 2016
—E—+4F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TF T AREBTIT

Within one year —FR 397 398
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ERF(BEEERE) 560 940

957 1,338
COMMITMENTS 33. A&IE

In addition to the operating lease commitments
detailed in note 32 above, the Group had the following
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

B b ST RE32 P ol 9 48 A KO A IR
S REBEN 2 HMIRE A T AL

2017 2016
—E—+HF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TF T ARETT

Contracted for capital commitment in BN B R RIRENEI4

respect of investment in a subsidiary BRI 128,171 128,171

Contracted for commitments in respect of: 75 B8 LA I8 B AYFT #95HE :
— advertising and consultancy services —EBE KBRS 571 147
— construction in progress —EETE 149 -
— research and development contract —REEH 685 60
— property, plant and equipment — % BB R 7,539 1,200
8,944 1,407
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34.

35.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group is as follows:

34. BEAXIRS

AEETF2EEABNMET

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARETIT

Fees e _ _

Other emoluments: HiE -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - EBL R EWHZ 2,001 1,980
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKRE R EH B TR

schemes 31 31

2,032 2,011

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings (note 25), convertible
notes and warrants (note 26), and provision for
contingent consideration (note 27); net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors of the Company,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at 31 December 2017 and 2016

are as follows:

36. BEFETWEMTE
R-F—tFR=-_F-—R"F+=-A
St-BEMREERTAREEN
T

Financial assets ETREE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Loans and receivables: B REKFA -
Trade and bills receivables (note 19) FEUE SRR RN (FTE19) 29,806 76,132
Financial assets included in prepayments,  B&ETENIIE K E RHM
deposits and other receivables R RIBEN e MEE 2,442 4,223
Pledged deposits BB HER 2,127 4,283
Cash and bank balances e RIRTT4E 5,888 4,789
40,263 89,427
Financial liabilities e =R
2017 2016
E-tF ZEF
Financial Financial
Financial liabilities at Financial liabilities at
liabilities at  amortised liabilities at ~ amortised
FVTPL cost Total FVTPL cost Total
BAYE D% 1 O A
iTARE  BAGE AARE  RAGE
WemaRE MENeE aE NEEEE NEBAR ek
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETH
Non-derivative financial liabilities:  FE/T42BELE :
Trade and bills payables (note 23) eI & S8R RIEL
SB(WH23) - 48,001 48,001 - 53,889 53,889
Financial liabilities included in BEEE R  Hi
deposits received, other payables  fEfFIEK BT ER
and accruals MeRaE - 33,044 33,044 - 24,385 24,385
Interest-bearing bank borrowings st B8R {TEE (#f3225)
(note 25) - 117,000 117,000 - 124,000 124,000
Provision for contingent KARERE(HH27)
consideration (note 27) 48,302 - 48,302 276,868 - 276,868
48,302 198,045 246,347 276,868 202,274 479,142
Derivative financial liabilities: TELBER
Warrants ARREE = = = 5,067 - 5,067
Convertible notes RRER 144,822 - 144,822 194,824 - 194,824
144,822 - 144,822 199,891 - 199,891
BIERFY —T—tEFER
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37. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF 37. eI AN A FEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and ArEBRBELSEMEERATE
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value ENTREERSREBENATE
on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial REZWMBAR AEBENETEHE
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each ErcRBBERATEFE - TRE
reporting period. The following table gives information JzEeREEREMBEATEE
about how the fair values of these financial assets and EAN(LEEZAMNMERERE
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the ANEBE)RHBEE R

valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Significant

Fair value as at Fair value unobservable Valuation technique(s)
Financial liabilities 31 December 2017 hierarchy inputs Range and key input(s)

R-E-t&
tZR=+-H EXTABR HEAEREE
tHEE MATE NTESER BAE &8 BAE
Convertible notes  Liabilities, Level 3 Volatility 79.09%-84.94% Binomial Model
RMB144,822,000 (2016: 80.88%-81.76%) The key inputs are set out in
note 26
THRERE g £=4 i 79.09%- 84.94% ZHEER
AR %144,822,0007 (ZZ—"%:8083%-81.76%)  FEHAEHRMKF26
Provision for Liabilities, Level 3 Discount rate 12.32%-12.54% Discounted Cash Flow
contingent RMBA48,302,000 (2016: 12.15%-12.69%) Approach
consideration The key inputs are set out in
note 27
IRRERE af E=R BRX 12.32%-12.54% ERREMA
AR 48,302,000 (ZE-7E1215%1269%)  FEHABEHRMEY

1 74 Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2017




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEBMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-FT—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

37. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

37. €M I AN A FEFEE)

There were no transfers in or out of level 3 for the years HE-Z—+FR-ZF—X"F+=A
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. =+ —BIEFE B=RALEE AN
B o
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying ARRIEFERE  RIRE M5 MK
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities RNEHEEREMEBENREER
recognised in the consolidated financial statements HATEES -
approximate their fair values.
Fair value hierarchy NEEER
As at 31 December 2017 R=ZF—tHF+=HA=+—8
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—R EFZR E=H wmaE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB'000
ARETR AR® TR AR%¥® TR AR¥TxR

Convertible notes AR ERIR - - 144,822 144,822
Provision for contingent PN (BRSNS

consideration - - 48,302 48,302

As at 31 December 2016 R-ZEBE—RE+=-_B=1+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£—M B R BE=4 R

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETIT ARBETT ARETFIT ARETIT

Convertible notes AR — — 194,824 194,824

Warrants R - = 5,067 5,067
Provision for contingent AR ERE

consideration

- - 276,868 276,868
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37.

38.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

37. €@ I AN A FEFE#E)

F=RMDFEFTENYIR

Convertible Provision for
notes and contingent
warrants  consideration
TRRER
RRARER HDARERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®B TR AR®T T
(note 26) (note 27)
(Ktit26) (Ki#27)
As at 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R-Z—XR"F+-_A=+—HxK
—ET—+F—-H—H 199,891 276,868
Amount incurred during the year FRARHE - (8,678)
Derecognition during the year FNEETER (5,067) -
Fair value gain credited to profit or loss FARBRETAZ A FEE
during the year (50,002) (219,888)
As at 31 December 2017 NZZE—+tF+=-_A=+—H 144,822 48,302

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments, include trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, pledged
deposits, cash and bank balances, trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
bank borrowings, convertible notes, warrants, and
provision for contingent consideration. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, interest
rate risk, liquidity risk and commodity price risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy but the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should needs arise.

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. KEREEEERBE#E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk S B
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such rEEERSEBRAR  E2REN
exposures arise from sales transactions and financing Erx(Erx)RAET(ETDFERN
denominated in US dollars (“US$”) and Hong Kong HEXHEMEES ARNBTER
dollars (“HK$"). As the HKS$ is virtually pegged to FEETHE AEEBHRETLBE
the US$, the Group does not expect any significant TTRIERY EEREH) -
movements in the US$/HK$ exchange rates and
accordingly.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the TRETRERAR WABEME
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible ERFIAE  AEERMATEBLEE
change in the US$ exchange rate, with all other variables TORE R & IR ] s # Y B
held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax.
Increase/
(decrease) in
Increase/  the Group's
(decrease) in loss before
US$ rate tax
AEBERB
EnEEX AMBBELA
E#H(FEK) (&%)
% RMB’000
ARBTT
2017 —E—tf
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETLAREHE 5 1,359
If US$ weakens against RMB METHARERE (5) (1,359)
2016 —E—RF
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETHAREE 5 2,198
If US$ weakens against RMB WETHARERE (5) (2,198)

AEEREIL EINELRRHR - BE
BEERIMNERR TENEHERE
ERENEAINE LR o

HERY —T-tFFH
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees provided by
the Group is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in US (2016: PRC), which accounted
for 69% (2016: 46%) of the total trade receivables as at
31 December 2017.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 45%
(2016: 39%) and 78% (2016: 91%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-
bearing bank borrowings with floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating
interest rate borrowings in order to manage its interest
rate risks. The interest-bearing bank borrowings, cash
and short term deposits are stated at amortised cost
and not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate
interest income and expenses are credited/charged to the
statement of profit or loss as earned/incurred.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s net loss before tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings)

38. MBEBREEEEREEKE)

MRmE b (E)
FRERMAE LS ERETE .
AEBGBAMEBREFR(RFEEER
TE)EMNRZ SRR R E BB
I‘\Eo

Increase in

Increase in loss before
interest rate tax
BR B AT

F 2= 38 BB
(basis points) RMB'000

(£%H) ARBTE

2017 Bt
2016 ZE—RF
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2017, the Group
has available unutilised short-term bank loan facilities of
approximately RMB51,040,000 (2016: Nil).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

100 1,170
100 1,240

REE SRR
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Z2WHFEEER R EABRNAEE
LEMFREMASEFEYKRT X
BRERERSRENDNTE -EE
BERBTEENERBER LR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve

at the end of the reporting period.

38. MR EREBFERBIR(#)

REBESEE(E)
REHRHK - HWASRBFEDFER:
APRITR S BIR N R iRt H -

2017
—E—+tHF
Less than 1to5 Undiscounted Carrying
On demand 12 months years cash flow amount
DR AITH
REXE +=f8A —Z5fF BeRE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥BTR AR¥Tn AR¥Tn AR%®Tr AR%T=x
Non-derivative financial liabilities: JEfTE SR B (E :
Trade and bills payables (note 23) FEZ 5 8E3% I FE 1+
FE(Hi23) - 48,001 - 48,001 48,001
Financial liabilities included REEEKERE A
in deposits received, other i JE (T R0A K% e =t
payables and accruals BRMeRAR - 33,044 - 33,044 33,044
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t EH1TfEE - 118,202 - 118,202 117,000
Provision for contingent FANREBEE
consideration - 1,142 65,502 66,644 48,302
- 200,389 65,502 265,891 246,347
Derivative financial liabilities: T4 $RAE :
Convertible notes AHRRE - 92,686 61,790 154,476 144,822
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

38.

MEEEEEEREREEKE)

Liquidity risk (continued) REESRK(Z)
2016
—ERF
Less than 12 Tto5 Undiscounted Carrying
On demand months years cash flow amount
PR AH
RE R +=f@A —EhF Heng BEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE ARBTT AR®Tn ARETr ARETx
Non-derivative financial liabilities: JEfT4 SR B1E :
Trade and bills payables (note 23) FEfHE 583 R B
FB(H23) - 53,889 - 53,889 53,889
Financial liabilities included pErEElRS &
in deposits received, other i B (< SR IE % B AT
payables and accruals BRMeRAR - 24,385 - 24,385 24,385
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T B SRITEE - 126,985 - 126,985 124,000
Provision for contingent FAREBEE
consideration - 8,678 404,589 413,267 276,868
- 213,937 404,589 618,526 479,142
Derivative financial liabilities: 744 RARE :
Convertible notes ARBREER - - 165,305 165,305 194,824

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of
the Group’s products include rubber and plastics. The
Group is exposed to fluctuations in the prices of these
raw materials which are influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. Fluctuations in
the prices of raw materials could adversely affect the
Group’s financial performance. The Group historically has
not entered into any commodity derivative instruments to
hedge the potential commodity price changes.

1 F BRI = BB BI04 2 AR
ERIEAER - 3 A ERIEOTAE S
BENEBIDFE TARRERE
[

7 B A% L B
AEESEEMN I EREMHBER
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 39. AT Z BB RER
THE COMPANY

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Note RMB’'000 RMB’'000
B 2% ARET T AREF T
NON- CURRENT ASSET FREBEE
Intangible assets EIEE 549,000 1,150,000
Interest in subsidiaries R E A A ARERS 888,248 893,338
1,437,248 2,043,338
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFIE e R HEAE
receivables & 296 328
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTHA R 51 47
347 375
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Deposits received, other payables and B iz % - b fESS
accruals FREV Y EE-§3E! 11,584 9,818
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTBY B A RIZNIE 1,112,580 1,112,991
Warrants BRI EE = 5,067
Convertible notes AR =i 87,001 =
1,211,165 1,127,876
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RESEERE (1,210,818) (1,127,501)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERAHEE
LIABILITIES 226,430 915,837
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Convertible notes AR R 57,820 194,824
Provision for contingent consideration st R (BB 47,272 268,565
105,092 463,389
NET ASSETS EEFE 121,338 452,448
EQUITY R
Share capital A% 7 71,629 71,629
Reserves i i 49,709 380,819
TOTAL EQUITY R 121,338 452,448
Approved and authorised for issue by the Company’s ARAREEFER_ZE—NF=A
board of directors on 29 March 2018 and signed on its THABRAERBETE  WHANLT
behalf by: ATREKEE -
ZHENG Jingdong LEUNG Tsz Chung
WX BT
Director Director
g =
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39. COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF 39. RAB M BARM &R ()
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Note g
i) Reserves of the Company i) VNN
Capital Share
Share  Contributed  redemption options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
R RE EfRS EAEERE BRERE ZitER @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2016 R=ZE-7~E-A-H 401,639 395,026 524 10,688 (112,049) 695,828
Issue of shares upon exercise of share  R{TEERIER
options Bkt 14,686 - - (4,563) - 10,123
Loss and total comprehensive expense for  ERBERZER X
the year % - - - - (a580)  (345,844)
Forfeiture of share options RUEE = = = (1474) 1474 -
Equity-settled share option arrangements bR ERERIESZ 5 - - - 20,712 - 20,712
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-R"ETZA=1-H
1 January 2017 k=E-t5-f-H 416,325 395,026 524 25,363 (456,419) 380,819
Loss and total comprehensive expense EREER2ERX
for the year ag - - - - (336,521) (336,521)
Forfeiture of share options RUERE - - - (2,490) 2,490 =
Equity-settled share option NRELENERERE
arrangements - - - 5411 - 5411
At 31 December 2017 R=B-tE+ZA=+-H 416,325 395,026 524 28,284 (790,450) 49,709
BigKE —ZT—tFEER
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY

Place of registration/
incorporation and

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity

40. RRAEEMB QAN

Name operations paid up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
EiR/AMALR ERARER
£ LEny HREX FAAEEEREDL IEXH
Direct Indirect
Hi k3
BAOF International Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Trading of slippers
and provision of
management services
ERHERARLRA BB 10,000 7T 100 - EEHmERREERRS
Quanzhou Baofeng Shaes Co., Ltd.*  PRC RMB544,229,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
("Quanzhou Baofeng") slippers, sandals and
casual footwear
FMEEELBRAR e ARE - 100 HERHERE RER
(TFMEE]) 544,229,0007C k=
Baofeng Madern (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Dormant
EBEH(BE)ERAR & 10,0007 1T 100 - ERR%
Astute Sino Developments Limited BV Us$100 100 - Dormant
EEERARA AERUBE 100%7T 100 - EEEX
2D Material Technology Company ~ Hong Kong HK$100 100 - Dormant
Limited
WEMHHMBARRA &k 1007 100 - EEE%
2D Material Technology Limited BVI Us$100 100 - Dormant
ABRAES 100%7 100 - EEEX
Xinfeng 2D (Fujian) Material PRC RMB7,500,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale
Technology Company Limited of Graphene-based
("Xinfeng 2D")* Products
BEME_EHMHAMBEERAT  BE AEE - 100 HERHEARBER
([HEe=g])+ 7,500,007
*  Quanzhou Baofeng and Xinfeng 2D are wholly-foreign- & RN E & R — 4 AR IR AR BE

owned enterprise established under the law of the PRC.

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

41.

REMKZNINGEE R A

BT 2 AL

NFE=H

for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2018.
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